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BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited,

Your Directors hereby present the 17t Board's Report on the business, operations and state of affairs of the Company

together with the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023:

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

I. Consolidated Financial Performance:

(Rs. in million)

Diluted

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Total Revenue 13,188.82 17,534.18
Total Expenditure 15,366.14 18,623.94
(Loss) before share in associates and tax (2,177.32) (1,089.76)
Share in Profit/(Loss) of associates (57.40) (360.82)
(Loss) after share in associates and tax (2,234.72) (1,450.58)
Tax Expenses 295.14 85.79
(Loss) for the Year (2,529.86) (1,536.37)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (0.74) (18.04)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (2,530.60) (1,554.41)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:-

Owners of the parent (2,612.07) (1,703.25)

Non-Controlling interests 82.21 166.88
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) attributable to:-

Owners of the parent 1.80 18.09

Non-Controlling interests 1.06 0.05
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) attributable to:-

Owners of the parent (2,613.87) (1,721.34)

Non-Controlling interests 83.26 166.93
Earnings per Equity Share () (face value of Rs. 10 each):-

Basic (35.00) (23.43)

(35.00) (23.43)




Il. Standalone Financial Performance:

(Rs. in million)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total Revenue 8,012.17 10,841.31
Total Expenditure 9,765.25 11,661.79
(Loss) Before Tax (1,753.08) (820.48)
Tax Expenses 215.46 (74.47)
(Loss) for the year (1,968.54) (746.01)
Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) (2.73) (18.10)
Total comprehensive Income/(Loss) (1,971.27) (764.11)
Earnings per Equity Share (%) (face value of Rs. 10 each):-
Basic (27.23) (11.38)
Diluted (27.23) (11.38)

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company earned consolidated income of Rs. 13,188.82 million as compared to Rs.
17,534.18 million during the previous year. The loss for the year was Rs. 2,529.86 million as against loss of Rs. 1,536.37 million
in the previous year. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company earned standalone income of Rs. 8,012.17 million
as compared to Rs. 10,841.31 million during the previous year. The loss for the year was Rs. 1,753.08 million as against loss of
Rs. 820.48 million in the previous year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements (Consolidated and Standalone) are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules

framed thereunder (the Act) and the applicable Accounting Standards and forms part of this Report.

The Auditor’'s Report issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the Company on the

financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is unmodified and is annexed to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company had redeemed 20,00,000 - 7% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 2 crores out of the proceeds of the fresh issue of
20,00,000 - 9% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at par aggregating
to Rs. 2 crores to Edel Finance Company Limited, holding company, on rights basis.

HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edel Finance Company Limited, which is in turn, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL).



The salient features of the financial statements of each of the subsidiaries as required under the Companies Act, 2023 (the
‘Act’) is provided in the financial statements in Form AOC-1. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are available on the
website of the Company at the link: ercsl.edelweissfin.com. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of financial
statements of the subsidiaries may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

FINANCE

During the year under review, the Company has issued secured Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private placement.

LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided are reported in the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company are on arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. The
Company has not entered into transactions with the Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, which may have
potential conflict of interest with the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing

Regulations’), the Company has formulated the Related Party Transactions Policy, which is available on the website of the

Company at ercsl.edelweissfin.com.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties as prescribed in Section 188 of the Act and forming part of
this Report is provided in Form AOC-2 attached as Annexure I. All the Related Party Transactions as required under the
applicable Accounting Standards are reported in the financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(i) Independent Directors
In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the Independent Directors have given a declaration that
they meet the criteria of independence as provided in the said Section and also in terms of the Listing Regulations. In
the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise, experience
and proficiency.

Pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board had, subject to the
approval of the Members:-

i. Appointed Mr. Bharat Bakshi (DIN:07648220) as an Independent Director of the Company for the first term till the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.

ii. Re-appointed Mr. Vinod Juneja (DIN:000443110) as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of
5 years w.e.f. August 19, 2022.

The Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on August 19, 2022 approved the
appointment of Mr. Bakshi and re-appointment of Dr. Juneja.

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. August 31, 2022. The Board
placed on record its appreciation of the services rendered by Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah during his tenure as
Independent Director of the Company.



(ii) Executive Directors

Mr. Ravindra Dhobale (DIN: 05147051) was appointed as an Executive Director w.e.f. August 2, 2022, for a period of 3
years. The approval of the Members for the appointment of Mr. Dhobale was obtained at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on August 19, 2022.

(iii) Retirement by rotation
Mr. Santosh Dadheech (DIN:00196204) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being

eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

(iv) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Chirag Shah was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. May 27, 2022.

Mr. Ravindra Dhobale was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2022.

The KMPs of the Company are also the KMPs of the subsidiaries of the Company.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board met 7 times. The details of the Board meetings and the attendance of the

Directors at the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy pursuant to Section 178 of the Act. The Policy is provided as

Annexure Il to this Report.

EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD

A Board Evaluation Policy (the Policy) for evaluating the performance of the Board, its Committees, the Chairman, the Executive
Directors, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Directors has been adopted by the Company.

The Policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board effectiveness, quality of discussion,
contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders,
corporate governance practices, review of the terms of reference of the Committees and the contribution of the Committees
to the Board in discharging its functions, etc.

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein the performance of the Non-Independent Directors,
performance of the Board as a whole (including the Committees) and also that of the Chairman in terms of the provisions of
the Act, the Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India in this regard
was discussed.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. The Company’s internal
control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and
promptness in financial reporting and compliance with the laws and regulations. The internal control system is also
supported by an internal audit process.

M/s. JHS & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Internal Auditors of your Company for the financial
year 2022-23.



Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy that seeks to minimise adverse impact on business
objectives and capitalise on opportunities. The Risk Committee oversees the risk management framework of the Company
through regular and proactive intervention by identifying risks and formulating mitigation plans.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Dr. Vinod Juneja - Independent Director (Chairman)
Mr. Bharat Bakshi- Independent Director
Mr. Nikhil Johari - Non-executive Director

Further details of the Audit Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns/grievances. The Policy is available on the

website of the Company at the link: ercsl.edelweissfin.com.

The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against the victimisation of the persons who use the vigil mechanism. The vigil

mechanism is overseen by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
The CSR Committee comprises of:

Ms. Ananya Suneja - Non-executive Director
Mr. Santosh Dadheech - Non-executive Director
Dr. Vinod Juneja - Independent Director

A report on the Corporate Social Responsibility in accordance with the provisions of the Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 is provided in Annexure Il to this Report. The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at the link:
ercsl.edelweissfin.com.

AUDITORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (the Act),
M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005) were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 12" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on July 24, 2018. The term of office
of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, as Statutory Auditors of the Company will conclude from the close of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held on
August 2, 2023 had subject to the approval of the Members, approved the appointment of M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002391C/N500069) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office
for the first term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the 22" AGM to
be held in the calendar year 2028.

M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required under the Act for
holding the office as Auditors of the Company.



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

M/s. SVVS & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP, were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors to conduct the Secretarial
Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. The Report of the Secretarial Auditors is provided as Annexure IV to this
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer.

The Secretarial Audit Report of Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited and Allium Finance Private Limited, the Material
Unlisted Subsidiaries of the Company, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, forms part of this Report. The Secretarial
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. No cases were reported during the
year under review. There were no complaints pending as on March 31, 2023. The Company has complied with the provisions
relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS/ OUTGO

A. Conservation of energy
i.  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy — The operations of the Company are not energy intensive.

However, adequate measures have been taken for conservation of energy wherever possible.

ii.  The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy — Though the operations of the Company

are not energy intensive, the Company explores alternative sources of energy, as and when the necessity arises.

iii.  The capital investment on energy conservation equipments — Nil

B. Technology absorption
i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption — The Company extensively uses the information technology in its

operations and has absorbed the technology required in this regard.

ii.  The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution — The

Company has leveraged the technology to reach out to its customer in the difficult times of pandemic.
iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial
year):
(@) the details of technology imported: Not Applicable
(b) the year of import: Not Applicable
(c) whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not Applicable

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development — Not Applicable.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

During the year under review, the Company earned foreign exchange of Rs. 16.09 million (previous year Rs. 7.99 million)
and there was outgo of foreign exchange of Rs. 4.57 million (previous year Rs. 4.73 million).



OTHER DISCLOSURES

i) There are no significant material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company that
occurred between the end of financial year and the date of this Report.

i) There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
iii)  There was no revision in the financial statements of the Company.

iv)  There was no application made or proceeding pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016. There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank/Financial Institution in respect of loan
taken by the Company.

v)  No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going

concern status and Company'’s operations in future.
vi) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee and the Board.
vii) Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified under the Act is not applicable to the Company.
viii) The Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
ix) The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
X)  The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as at March 31, 2023 in Form MGT-7, is available on the

website of the Company at the link: ercsl.edelweissfin.com.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the Report on Corporate Governance together with the certificate issued by M/s. SVVS &
Associates, Company Secretaries, on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance during the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 is provided in Annexure V and forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Directors confirm that:
i) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed;

i) such accounting policies have been selected and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023
and the loss of the Company for the financial year ended on that date;

iii)  proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;



v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi)  proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board acknowledges the valuable guidance and continued support extended by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, other government authorities, Banks and other stakeholders. Your
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the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja
Executive Director and Non-executive Director
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, August 2, 2023 DIN: 05147051 DIN: 07297081



(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form AOC-2

Annexure |

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis: Not Applicable

(Rupees in million)

Sr.

Name(s) of the
related party and
nature of
relationship

Nature of
contracts/
arrangements/
transactions

Duration of
the contracts/
arrangements/
transactions

Salient terms of
the contracts or
arrangements or
transactions
including

the value, if any

Justification for
entering into
such contracts
or arrangements
or transactions

Date of
approval
by the
Board

Amount
paid as
advances, if
any

Date on which the
special resolution
was passed in general
meeting as required
under first proviso to
section 188




Il. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(Rupees in million)

Salient terms

of the
Duration of the contracts or Amount
Sr. Name(s) of the related party and | Nature of arrangements | Date of approval paid as
. . . contracts/arrangem
No. nature of relationship contracts/arrangements/transactions . or by the Board advances,
ents/transactions . .
transactions if any
including the
value, if any
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Sale of Securities
1 (Fellow subsidiary) - 1,671.49 | January 28, 2022 -
ECL Finance Limited e of
Sale of Securities
2 (Fellow subsidiary) - 1,889.04 | January 28, 2022 -
Edel Finance Company Limited -
3 Sale of Securities - 2,130.43 | January 28, 2022 -

(Holding Company)

Mumbai, August 2, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Ravindra Dhobale

Executive Director and

Ananya Suneja

Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 05147051

DIN: 07297081

Non-executive Director




Annexure Il
Remuneration Policy

Objective

The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) requires a Company to frame policy for determining the remuneration payable
to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees. While appointing the Directors, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers qualification, positive attributes, areas of expertise and number
of Directorships in other companies and such other factors as it may deem fit. The Board considers the Committee’s
recommendation and takes appropriate action.

The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide a framework for the remuneration
of the Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors, Managing Director/Executive Directors, KMPs, and other
Senior level employees of the Company.

The objective of this Policy is to ensure that:

the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain talent required to
run the company successfully;

ii. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

iii. remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and senior management comprises a balance of fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and
its goals.

Remuneration of the Independent Directors & Non- executive Directors

e The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are eligible for sitting fees for attending the meetings
of the Board and the Committees thereof.

e The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are also eligible for commission, subject to limits
prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed there under.

e The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options.
e  The Non-executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock options.
Remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Directors
e The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) to the Board. Based on the recommendations of the NRC, the Board

determines and approves the remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors, subject to
necessary approvals, if any.

e The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Directors is within the limits prescribed under
the Act and approved by the shareholders of the Company. The remuneration structure includes fixed salary,
perquisites, bonus, other benefits and allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.

e  The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock options.

Remuneration of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level employees

e The key components of remuneration package of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level
employees shall comprise of fixed salary, perquisites, annual bonus, other benefits and allowances and
contribution to Funds, etc.

e They shall be eligible for stock options.



Policy Review

e The Policy may be amended as may be necessary.

Mumbai, August 2, 2023

The NRC shall implement the Policy, and may issue such guidelines, procedures etc. as it may deem fit.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja
Executive Director and Non-executive Director
Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 05147051 DIN: 07297081



Annexure Il

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
for the financial year March 31, 2023

As prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector to achieve the greatest impact
on the lives of the poor in India.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:
Sl Name of Director Designation / Nature Number of Number of
No. of Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee
during the year | attended during
the year
1. Dr. Vinod Juneja Independent Director 1 1
2. Ms. Ananya Suneja Non-executive Director 1 1
3. Mr. Santosh Dadheech Non-executive Director 1 1
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:
ercsl.edelweissfin.com
4. Provide the executive summary along with the weblink of Impact assessment of CSR projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:
Not Applicable
5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): NIL
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): NIL
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5a+5b-5c): NIL
6. (a) CSR amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing and other than Ongoing Project): Not Applicable

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
() Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the financial year (a)+(b)+(c): NIL

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:



Nil - - - - -

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as -
per section 135(5)

(i) [Total amount spent for the financial year -

(iii)  [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv)  [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes
or activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial
lyears [(iii)- (iv)]

7.  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:

1 FY 2019-20
Nil

2 FY 2020-21

3 FY 2021-22
Total Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount
spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable
For and on behalf of the Board of
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja

Executive Director and Non-executive Director
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, May 22, 2023 DIN: 05147051 DIN: 07297081



Annexure IV
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
2nd Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,

Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad - 500034,

Telangana.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings";

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 20113

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(©) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 20183,

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 20144 ;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

! Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period
’Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period
3ibid
4ibid



(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 20215

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018,

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; (the Listing Regulations) and

(vi) Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company, namely: NIL
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the
Listing Regulations.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes’.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines
(Please see Annexure B).

We further report that during the year under review, the Company has redeemed 20,00,000 Preference Shares by way
of issue of new Preference Shares (on rights basis) on March 29, 2023.

May 22, 2023 For SVVS & Associates Company Secretaries LLP
Mumbai

CS. Suresh Viswanathan
Designated Partner

UDIN :F004453E000346608
FCS : 4453

CP No :11745

Note: This report is to be read with the list of Applicable Laws and our letter of even date which are attached as
Annexure A and Annexure B respectively and form an integral part of this report.

Sibid
Sibid
7 All resolutions were carried unanimously



ANNEXURE A

The Members,

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
2nd Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,

Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad 500034,

Telangana.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

No audit has been conducted on the compliance with finance and taxation laws as the same are subject to
audit by the Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor to the Company and their observations, if any, shall hold
good for the purpose of this audit report.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws rules, regulations the responsibility
of management, our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Audit of the compliance with Other Laws has been undertaken based on scope of audit and the applicability
of such Laws as ascertained by the Company and informed to us.

We have relied on reports of Internal Audit, Regulatory Inspection/Audit to the extent made available to us
and the observations, if any, contained in such reports shall hold good for the purpose of this audit report.

May 22, 2023 For SVVS & Associates Company Secretaries LLP
Mumbai

CS. Suresh Viswanathan
Designated Partner

UDIN : FO004453E000346608
FCS : 4453

CPNo :11745



No.

ANNEXURE B

Laws applicable to the Company

The following laws have been taken into account to verify if that there are adequate systems and processes to monitor
and ensure compliance with, in the Company, commensurate with its with the size and operations:
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Companies Act 2013, and the rules thereunder

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

Payment of Wages Act, 1936

Minimum wages act-regional

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

The Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953

The Maharashtra Workmen's Minimum House Rent Allowance Act, 1983

Employee’s Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
Employee Compensation Act, 1923

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

The Maharashtra Private Security Guards (Regulation of Employment & Welfare) Act, 1981 & Maharashtra
Private Security Agencies, 2005

Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948

Bombay Shops & Establishment Act 1948



Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited
2"d Floor, M.B. Towers, Plot No. 5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad - 500034

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 (“the year"/ "audit period”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We have verified books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31st March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company as
given in Annexure |, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and the Rules made thereunder - to the extent applicable;
(ili)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder - to the extent applicable;
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;- Not applicable and
(v)  The Following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (the
SEBI Act)
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021,
to the extent applicable
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Shares Transfer Agents) Regulations,
2013 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients, to the extent applicable
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, - not applicable
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, to the extent
applicable

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India which generally complied with.

During the year under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

* The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Key Managerial
Personnel that took place during the period under review were in compliance and in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

* Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings; agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent in accordance with the Act and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.



*  All the resolutions/ decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously with requisite majority as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited.

We further report that, during the year under review,

i. the Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 12, 2022 has obtained approval of the shareholders
of issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on a Private Placement Basis aggregating to Rs. 1000 Crores.

ii. the Company in its Board Meeting held on August 24, 2022 has issued and allotted 2000 Senior, Secured, Unlisted,
Unrated, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to % 1,97,00,00,000/- on Private Placement basis.

iii. the company in its Board Meeting held on January 28, 2023 has shifted its place of keeping its books of accounts and
complied with the provisions of the Act.

iv. the Company in its Board Meeting held on March 24, 2023 has issued and allotted 1650 Senior, Secured, Unlisted,
Unrated, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to X 1,62,52,50,000/- on Private Placement basis.

For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES

DILIP BHARADIYA

Partner
Place : London FCS No.: 7956., C P No.: 6740
Date : May 19, 2023 UDIN: F007956E000335415

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure Il and forms an integral part of this report.



ANNEXURE - |

List of documents verified:

1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company;

2. Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022

3. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors held during the financial year under review, alongwith Attendance
Registers;

4. Minutes of General Meetings held during the financial year under review;

5. Statutory Registers viz.

- Register of Directors’ & Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding

- Register of loans, guarantees and security and investment.

- Register of Charges

- Register of Members made by the Company

- Register of Contracts with Related Party and contracts and bodies, etc. in which the directors are interested.
6. Agenda papers provided to all the Directors/ Members for the Board Meetings;

7. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 184(1) and Section 164(2)
of the Companies Act, 2013; and
8. E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, along with

attachments thereof, during the financial year under review.



To,

ANNEXURE - 1l

The Members,

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited
2"d Floor, M.B. Towers, Plot No. 5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad - 500034

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

1)

2)

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of accounts of the Company.
Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES

DILIP BHARADIYA
Partner
FCS No.: 7956, C.P No.: 6740

Place : London
Date: May 19, 2023



Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) Rules, 2014]
To
The Members

Allium Finance Private Limited
Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall,
Kohinoor City Kirol Road,

Kurla West,

Mumbai - 400070.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to corporate practices by Allium Finance Private Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’) for the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliance and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’'s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agent and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us
and the representation made by the Management, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the Rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder’;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to meetings and minute.

We further report that -

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test- check basis, the Company has generally complied with the
rules, regulations, directions and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to Non-Banking
Financial Company- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company.

1 Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period



We further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. Mr. Bharat Bakshi was appointed as an Additional
Director (Independent) w.e.f. March 09, 2023 apart from this there were no other changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings; agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
Secretarial Standards and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All Resolutions of the Board of Directors and its Committees are approved on the basis of majority and are duly
recorded in the respective Minutes. There were no dissenting views by any member of the Board of Directors
during the Audit Period.

We further report that

During the audit period there were no major actions or events undertaken by the Company which may have a
major bearing on the Companies affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, guidelines, standards etc.

We further report that

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company, which commensurate with its size and operations, to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For ACMY & Associates

May 19, 2023. Sadanand Yadav

Mumbai Practicing Company Secretaries
Partner
ACS :37012

COP No : 14153
UDIN: A037012E000336289

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.



ANNEXURE A
To
The Members
Allium Finance Private Limited
Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall,
Kohinoor City Kirol Road,
Kurla West,
Mumbai - 400070.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The Company's management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the
provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the secretarial records produced for our audit.

2. We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are
reflected therein. We also examined the compliance procedures followed by the company on a test basis.
We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

4.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

5. We have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events wherever required.

6. Our Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ACMY & Associates

May 19, 2023. Sadanand Yadav

Mumbai Practicing Company Secretaries
Partner
ACS : 37012

COP No : 14153
UDIN: A037012E000336289



Annexure V

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

At Edelweiss, we strongly uphold good governance practices to promote fairness, transparency,
accountability and integrity. In line with this philosophy, Guiding Principles have been articulated
and these forms integral part of the Company’s corporate governance practices. Processes have
been designed to run the businesses responsibly and harmonize diversified interests of various
stakeholders thereby enhancing stakeholder value.

Board of Directors

Composition, Meeting and Attendance

The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company has an optimal combination of Executive,
Non-Executive and Independent Directors to maintain the independence of the Board from the
management, which is in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 6
Directors of which 1 is an Executive Director, 3 are Non-executive Non-Independent Directors and
2 are Independent Directors.

The annual calendar of the Board Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of the year. The
agenda for the Board Meetings is circulated in advance and is backed by comprehensive
background information to enable the Board to take informed decisions. During the financial year
2022-23, the Board met 7 times i.e. on: May 27, 2022, August 2, 2022, September 17, 2022,
November 7, 2022, December 1, 2022, January 28, 2023 and March 21, 2023. Adequate facilities
were provided to the Directors and invitees for active participation at the Meetings.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings
held during the financial year 2022-23 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), the number
of directorships and committee positions held by them in other public limited companies and the
name of the other listed entities where he/she is a Director and category of directorships as on
March 31, 2023, are as under:-



Name and DIN of | Category No. of Board |Attendance No. of Name of other Listed Committee
the Directors Meetings | at the last | directorship |entities where person is Position*
Attended | AGM held s in other | Director - Category of (Including this
on Public Directorship Company)
September Limited
30,2022 | Companies®
Member | Chairman

Dr. Vinod Juneja | Independent 7 No 9 Independent Director 10 2
(DIN: 00044311) | (Chairman) 1. Shyam Telecom

Limited

2. Shristi Infrastructure

Development

Corporation Limited
Mr. Ravindra Executive 5 Yes 1 Nil - -
Dhobale”
(DIN: 05147051)
Ms. Ananya Non- 5 Yes 6 Nil 1 -
Suneja executive
(DIN: 07297081)
Mr. Nikhil Johari| Non- 5 Yes Nil Nil 2 1
(DIN: 01960539) | executive
Mr. Santosh Non- 6 Yes Nil Nil - -
Dadheech executive
(DIN: 00196204)
Mr. Bharat Independent 6 No 1 Nil 3 1
Bakshir A
(DIN: 07648220)
Mr. Independent 2 Not
Kunnasagaran Applicable
Chinniah#

(DIN: 01590108)

$ Only Directorships of public limited companies incorporated in India have been considered and excludes
private limited companies, section 8 companies and foreign companies.

*Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, in other public limited companies, have
been considered for the Committee position.
AMr Ravindra Dhobale was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2022.
AN Mr. Bharat Bakshi was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. May 27, 2022.
#Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah, Independent Director resigned from the position of Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f August 31, 2022.

None of the Directors are related to each other.




The Members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2022:-

i. Appointed Mr. Bharat Bakshi (DIN:07648220) as an Independent Director of the Company
for the first term till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.
ii. Re-appointed Mr. Vinod Juneja (DIN:000443110) as an Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of 5 years w.e.f. August 19, 2022.
iii. Appointed Mr. Ravindra Dhobale as an Executive Director for a term of 3 years, w.e.f.
August 2, 2022.

None of the Directors hold office in more than 10 public companies as prescribed under the Act.
No Director holds Directorships in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Non-
executive Directors serve as Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies and none of
the whole time director / managing director in any listed entity shall serve as an independent
director in more than 3 listed entities as required under the Listing Regulations. None of the
Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairperson of more than
5 Committees, across all public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. Independent
Directors are Non-executive Directors as defined under the Listing Regulations and the Act along
with Rules framed thereunder. In terms of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board has confirmed that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Listing Regulations and that they
are independent of the Management. Further, the Independent Directors have, in terms of
Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the Independent Directors’
Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In the opinion of the Board,
the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise, experience and
proficiency.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified for appointed as
Directors pursuant to Section 164 of the Act.

M/s. SVVS & Associates, Company Secretaries, have issued a certificate certifying that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any such statutory authority.

Board skills/expertise/competence matrix

The Board have identified the following parameters with respect to the skill/expertise/
competence that are available with the Board in the context of the business and sector for it to
function effectively:



Directors Industry Technical Skills/Experience | Behavioural

Knowledge / Competencies
Experience
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Dr. Vinod Juneja * * * * * * - - * *
Ms. Ananya Suneja * * * * * * * * * *
Mr. Santosh Dadheech * * - * * * * * * *
Mr. Nikhil Johari * * * * * * * * * *
Mr. Ravindra Dhobale * * - * * * * * * *
Mr. Bharat Bakshi * * - * * * * * * *

Committees of the Board:

A)

Audit Committee
Meetings held:

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met 5 times on May 27,
2022, August 2, 2022, September 17, 2022, November 7, 2022 and
January 28, 2023.

The Committee comprises of Independent Directors and Non-executive Directors. The
composition as on March 31, 2023 and attendance during the year ended March 31, 2023
is as under:-

No. of meetings
Name of the Members Attended

Dr. Vinod Juneja — Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Nikhil Johari (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Bharat Bakshi® (Independent Director)

NN [fw | w [ u»;

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah? (Independent Director)

@ Mr. Bharat Bakshi was appointed as a Member w.e.f. August 2, 2022.
$ Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah ceased as a Member w.e.f. August 31, 2022.



All the members have financial management expertise. The constitution and terms of reference

of the Committee are in compliance with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

Brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia include:

1)

2)

3)

4)

8)
9)

10)
11)

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and
credible;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;

Approval of payment to the statutory auditors for any other service rendered by the
statutory auditors;

Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval with particular reference to:

a. matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility statement to be
included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of the
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b.  changes if any, in the accounting policies and practices and reasons
for the same;

c.  major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
judgement by management;

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit

findings;

e. compliance with the listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

f. disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission
to the Board for approval;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory auditors and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower/Vigil mechanism;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.



B)

The Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Chief Financial Officer are invited to attend the
meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Company Secretary to the
Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met 3 times on
May 27, 2022, August 2 2022 and September 17, 2022.

The composition as on March 31, 2023 and attendance during the financial year ended March
31, 2023 is as under:-

Name of the Members No. of Meetings
Attended

Dr. Vinod Juneja — Chairman (Independent Director) 3

Mr. Nikhil Johari (Non-executive Director) 1

Mr. Bharat Bakshi® (Independent Director) 1

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah?® (Independent Director) 2

@ Mr. Bharat Bakshi was appointed as a Member w.e.f. August 2, 2022.
$ Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah ceased as a Member w.e.f. August 31, 2022,

Brief description of the terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
inter alia include:

1) Identifying the persons who can become Directors;

2)  Formulating the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes etc. and
independence of a Director;

3)  Recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors &
Key Managerial Personnel;

4) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management;

5)  Specify the manner for effective annual evaluation of performance of the Board, its
Committees and individual Directors.

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy which is annexed to the Board’s
Report.

Board Evaluation

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, in accordance with the Board Evaluation
Policy and the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI, an annual evaluation of



its own performance and that of the Committees and Directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the Listing Regulations was carried out by the Board on various parameters
which inter alia included composition, diversity, effectiveness, quality of discussion,
contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic thinking, time commitment,
relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance practices, contribution of the
Committees etc.

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein the performance of the
Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole (including the
Committees) and also that of the Chairman in terms of the provisions of the Act, the Listing
Regulations and the Guidance Note issued by SEBI in this regard was discussed.

Familiarization Programme

The Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights, responsibilities etc. in
relation to the nature of the financial services sector and the business model of the
Company. The details are uploaded on the website of the Company at:
ercsl.edelweissfin.com

Remuneration to the Directors

The Company was paying sitting fees of 320,000 per meeting to the Independent Directors
for attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.
The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on November 7, 2022, had revised the sitting fees
to %50,000 per Meeting to the Independent Directors for attending the Meetings of the
Board and the Committee thereof.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 are as under:

(Amount Rs. in million)

Name of the Sitting
Director Remuneration |Perquisites| Fees |Commission| Others* Total
(fixed &
Performance

bonus)
Dr. Vinod Juneja - - 0.34 - - 0.34
Ms. Ananya Suneja - - - - - -
Mr. Nikhil Johari - - - - 15.25 15.25
Mr. Santosh - - - - 7.08 7.08
Dadheech
Mr. Bharat Bakshi® - - 0.30 - - -
Mr. Ravindra - - - - - -
Dhobale
Mr. Kunnasagaran - - 0.14 - - 0.14
Chinniah®

*Fees paid for professional services.
@ Mr. Bharat Bakshi was appointed as Independent Director w.e.f. May 27, 2022.
$Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah resigned as Independent Director w.e.f. August 31, 2022.
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None of the Directors hold any shares in the Company.

During the year under review, some of the KMPs of the Company were also the KMPs of the
subsidiaries and drew remuneration from the subsidiaries.

Risk Management Committee

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met two times on August
2, 2022 and November 7, 2022.

The Committee comprises of Independent Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Company
Secretary of the Company. The composition as on March 31, 2023 and attendance during
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is as under:-

No. of meetings
Name of the Members Attended

Dr. Vinod Juneja (Independent Director) -

Mr. Nikhil Johari* (Non-executive Director) 2
Ms. Ananya Suneja (Non-executive Director) 2
Mr. Chirag Shah® (Company Secretary) Not Applicable

$ Mr. Nikhil Johari was appointed as a Member w.e.f. May 27, 2022.
@Mr. Chirag Shah was appointed as a Member w.e.f. November 7, 2022.

Brief description of the terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee inter alia
include:-

1) Ensuring the appropriateness of the Company in taking measures to achieve prudent
balance between risk and reward in both ongoing and new business activities.

2) Overseeing the risk management framework of the Company through regular and
proactive intervention by identifying risks and formulating mitigation plans.

3) Reporting to the Board on periodical basis.

4) Assist the Board in effective operation of risk management system by performing
specialized analyses and quality reviews;

5) Monitoring and Reviewing of the Risk Management Plan including Cyber Security.

6) Such other powers to be exercised by the Risk Management Committee pursuant to
circulars, notifications issued by Statutory & Regulatory authorities from time to time.
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Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met once on
May 27, 2022. The composition as on March 31, 2023 and attendance during the year ended

March 31, 2022 is as under:-

Name of the Members No. of Meetings
Attended

Mr. Nikhil Johari — Chairman (Non-executive 1

Director)

Dr. Vinod Juneja (Independent Director) Nil

Ms. Ananya Suneja (Non-executive Director) 1

Mr. Chirag Shah is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company.

Based on the reports received from the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents during the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Company did not receive any requests/complaints
during the year ended March 31, 2023. As on March 31, 2023, there were no outstanding

requests/complaints.

General Body Meetings

The last 3 Annual General Meetings (AGMs) of the Company were date, time and venue of the last
three Annual General Meetings are given below:

Financial Date

Year

2021-2022 September
30, 2022

2020-2021 November
29, 2021

2019-2020 October 29,
2020

Time

3:30 p.m.

5.00 p.m.

10.00 a.m.

Venue

4-A, 4% Floor, Emgeen
Chambers, CST Road, Kalina,
Santacruz (East), Mumbai —
400 098
Edelweiss House, Off CST|
Road, Kalina, Mumbai — 400
098

Held through Video
Conferencing / Other audio
Visual Means

No. of
Special
Resolutions
passed
Nil

Nil

Nil



Means of Communication

The financial results, press releases and the presentation made to the Investors/Analysts are
submitted to the Stock Exchanges and also uploaded on the website of the Company at
ercsl.edelweissfin.com.

The Company publishes quarterly, half-yearly and annual Results generally in Free Press
Journal and Navshakti Newspapers.
R General Shareholder Information
i. AGM: Date, time and Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. at the Corporate
venue/ mode Office of the Company at 4-A, 4t Floor, Emgeen Chambers,
CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400098
ii.  Financial Year: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023

iii.  Book Closure dates: Not Applicable

iv.  Dividend payment Not Applicable
date:

Il. Listing of Securities on Stock Exchanges:
Non-convertible Debentures

The Company has issued Secured Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private
placement.

Some of the NCDs are listed on BSE.

The Company has paid the listing fees to BSE for the financial year ended March 31,
2023.

Debenture Trustee:
The details of the Debenture Trustees for the NCDs issued by the Company are given
below:

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Universal Insurance Building, Ground Floor, Sir Windsor, 6t Floor, Office No. 604,

P M Road, Fort, C.S.T. Road, Kalina,
Mumbai — 400 001. Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400 098
Tel: 022-4080 7000 Tel.: +91 22 49220555
Email: ComplianceCTL-
Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com Mumbai@ctltrustee.com

Website: www.idbitrustee.com Website: www.catalysttrustee.com




lll. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:
a. Equity Shares

Link Intime India Private Limited,

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai - 400 083.

Tel: +91 22 81081 16767

Fax: +91 22 4918 6060

e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in

b. Non-Convertible Debentures

KFin Technologies Limited
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Mandal,
Hyderabad - 500 032

Tel: +91 40 6716 2222

Fax: +91 40 6716 1563
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: www kfintech.com

IV. Share Transfer System

Transfer of equity shares in electronic form are effected through the depositories without
any involvement of the Company.

V. Distribution of shareholding and shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2023

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Edel Finance Company Limited, which
(alongwith its nominees) holds 4,65,35,367 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each representing 100%
of the shareholding of the Company.

VI. Dematerialisation of shares

As on March 31, 2023, the entire share capital of the Company (both equity and preference
shares) are in demat form.

VII. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other instrument convertible into
equity.

VIIl. Plant locations — Not Applicable



IX. Credit ratings:

The credit ratings obtained by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023
are as under:-

Date of Cere
- evise
. . revision
Rating agency Rating Instruments Rating
(if any)
CARE A+ Bank Borrowing
CARE No No
Short term Revision change
CARE AT+ .
borrowing
CRISIL AA- Non-convertible
Debentures
CRISIL AA- Bank Borrowing
CRISIL Short t Re\’/\:.fion chl:: e
CRISIL AT+ ort term 9
borrowing
CRISIL AA- Preference Shares
ICRA A+ Non-convertible
Debentures No No
ICRA .
. Revision change
ICRA A+ Bank Borrowing

Other Disclosures

i. The Company did not enter into any materially significant related party transactions having a
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions with the related parties
are disclosed in the financial statements.

ii. The financial statements (both standalone and consolidated) have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable Accounting Standards.

iii.  The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism to report concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of our code of conduct and confirms that no
personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

iv.  Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading of the Company, the Policy for determining Material
Subsidiaries and the Policy on Related Party Transactions are available at ercsl.edelweissfin.com

v.  The details of the material subsidiaries of the Company as required under the Listing
Regulations are as under:-



Vi.

vii.

viii.

xi.

Sr. Name of the Details of Incorporation Details of Statutory
No. Material /Auditors
Subsidiaries
Place Date Name Date of]
IAppointment
1 Allium Finance Private [Mumbai March 18, M/s. GMJ & [September
Limited 2008 Co. 30, 2019
Chartered
Accountants
2 Edelweiss Mumbai May 30, [M/s September
Investment Adviser 2008 NGS & 7,2018
Limited Co.
LLP
3 Nido Home Finance |Mumbai May 30, |M/s NGS November
Limited 2008 & Co. LLP 3, 2021

There have been no instances where the Board has not accepted recommendations of any
Committee of the Board, during the financial year.

The statutory auditors of the Company, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP were paid the amount of
Rs. 9.05 million (including out of pocket expenses of Rs. 0.11 million) by the Company for all the
services provided during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a) Number of complaints filed during the Financial Year: Nil

b)  Number of complaints disposed of during the Financial Year: Nil

¢)  Number of complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year: Nil.

The Company has adopted the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il -
the financial statements are accompanied with an unmodified audit report.

The disclosures on loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

CEO / CFO Certification

The CFO has certified to the Board, the requirements of the Listing Regulations, with regard to
the financial statements.



xii. Compliance Certificate

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, a certificate issued by M/s. SVVS & Associates, Company
Secretaries, certifying the compliance by the Company with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance forms part of this Report.

Address for correspondence:

For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of securities, dematerialisation
of securities, change of address, non-receipt of annual report, dividend warrant and any other query relating
to the securities of the Company, the investors may write to:

The Company Secretary
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited

Registered Office:

2nd Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad 500 034

Corporate Office:

4-A, 4" Floor, Emgeen Chambers,
CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East),
Mumbai — 400098

Tel. No.: +91 22 4079 5199

Email: cs@edelweissfin.com

Website:
https://ercsl.edelweissfin.com/invest

or-relations/

Link Intime India Private
Limited

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400
083.

Tel: +91 22 4918 6270

Fax: +91 22 4918 6060

Email:
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

KFin Technologies Limited
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-
32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Mandal,
Hyderabad - 500 032

Tel: +91 40 6716 2222
Fax: +91 40 2343 1551

Email:
einward.ris@kfintech.com

Website: www.kfintech.com




Declaration by the Directors under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, it
is hereby confirmed that for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Directors and the Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja
Executive Director and Chief = Non-executive
Financial Officer Director

Mumbai, August 2, 2023 DIN: 05147051 DIN: 07297081



Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Members,

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
2nd Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,

Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad, — 500034.

Telangana

We have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2023, as prescribed in the Regulations 17 to 27,
62(1A), and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as mandatorily applicable, as specified in the

aforesaid provisions of the Listing Regulations.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of
the Company. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SVVS & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

May 22, 2023 CS. Suresh Viswanathan
Mumbai Designated Partner
UDIN : F004453E000346685
FCS 14453

CPNo :11745



Fath Floor, Tha Ruiy
S.R. BAtuiBoi & Co. LLP 2 Serapal Bapai Moy

Dadar (Wasl)
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 200 028 Indin

Tal +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company®), its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate comprising of the
consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based

n the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended {“the Act") in the manner S0
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, and its associate as at March 31, 2023, their
consolidated loss including other comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,

We have determined the matters described below o be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit
procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them
in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP. a Limited Liability Partnership with L L2 denlity No AAR.1294
Regd. Gffice : 22, Camae Street, Bluck B 3rd Moo, Kelkaln. 7060 05 6
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of financial instruments (expected credit [osses) (as described in Note 52 of the consolidated

financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Group to provide for
impairment of its financial assets as at the
reporting date using the expected credit loss (ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality of
the Group's financial assets (loan portfolio).

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for:

* Staging of financial assets (i.e. classification in
‘'significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR") and
‘default’ categories);

* Assigning internal rating grades to customers
for which external rating is not available-

« Calibrating external ratings-linked probability of
default to align with past default rates:

* Estimation of management overlay for macro-
economic factors bearing a correlation with the
credit quality of the Group's loan portfolio,

n view of such high degree of management’s
judgement invoived in estimation of ECL, it iIs
considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures, including those reported in the
auditor's report of respective subsidiary companies,
comprised the following:

* Read and assessed the Group's accounting
policy for impairment of financial assets and
fts compliance with Ind AS 109 and with the
governance framework approved by the
Board of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank
of India guidelines issued on March 13, 2020
("RBI Guidelines")

* Tested the design  and operating
effectiveness of the controls for staging of
loans based on their past-due status. Tested
samples of performing (stage 1) loans to
assess whether any loss indicators were
present requiring them to be classified under
stage 2 or 3.

* We performed procedures to test the inputs
used in the ECL computation, on a sample
basis.

* Tested assumptions used by  the
management in determining the overlay for
macro-economic factors.

s Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed by
the Group in spreadsheets.

¢ Including those reported in Audit Report of
respective subsidiary companies comprised
the following:

(a)} Information technology {IT) systems and controls

The reliability and security of IT systems play a key
role in the business operations, financial accounting
and reporting process of the Group. Since large
volume of transactions are processed daily, the [T
contrels are required to ensure that applications
process data as expected and that changes are
made in an appropriate manner. Any gaps in the IT
control environment could result in a material
misstatement of the financial accounting and
reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment
of the general IT controls and the application
controls specific to the accounting and preparation
of the financial information is considered to be a
key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures for testing
IT general controls and for assessing the reliability
of electronic data processing, assisted by
Specialized 1T auditors including those reported in
the auditor's report of respective subsidiary
companies, comprised the following:

» The aspects covered in the IT General Control
audit were (i) User Access Management (i)
Program Change Management (i) Other related
ITGCs - to understand the design and test the
operating effectiveness of such controis:

* Assessed the changes that were made to the key
systems during the audit period and assessing
changes that have impact on financial reporting:

TLB0
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?ey audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

* Tested the periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization,

* Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls wherever applicable} on
the [T application controls and IT dependent
manual controls in the system.

* Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls, where deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the
scope of our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directars is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including
its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, nciuding the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its
associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreguiarities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are also
sible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

[
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wilf always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 1 43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern. :

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors and
whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consclidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors, For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
rds.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter
We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of:

* 4 subsidiaries whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 45,967.32 miliion as at
March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs 6,106.94 million and net cash outflows of Rs. 1,759.41
million for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information
have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and
auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management.

* 1 associate company forming part of the Group, whose statement include Group's share of net
loss of Rs. 57.40 million for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, whose financial statements, other financial infoermation have been audited
by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management.

Our opinion on the consclidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and associate, and our report in terms of sub-sections {3} of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, and associate, is based solely

on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Reguiatory
Reguirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial
information furnished by the Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies, associate, incorporated in India, as noted in the
‘Other Matter paragraph we give in the "Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 3(xxi} of the Order. ‘

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
* other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries,
associates, as noted in the 'other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors:

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

S BAT &' tained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

%\
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() In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended:

(e}On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies
and associate, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, and its associate, incorporated in

india, is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, and its associate, incorporated in
India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2”
to this report;

(@) in our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, and associate incorporated in india, the managerial remuneration for the year ended
March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates
incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201 4, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information

of the subsidiaries, associates, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates in its consolidated financial
statements - Refer note 42.1 to the consolidated financial statements;

it.  The Group, its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

fii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate, incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2023

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate respectively
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 76 {(A) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the
respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
Or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Hoiding Company and its subsidiaries, associate which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate respectively
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 76 (B) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding
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Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries,
associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financlal statements have been
audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us
or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain
any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and associate, incorporated in India,

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E 300005

thﬂ'/

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEB2551

Place of Signature:; Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023
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Annexure 1 Referred to in Paragraph Under the Heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of Our Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Edelweiss Rural
& Corporate Services Limited

Based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary companies and associate, incorporated
in India, as noted in the '‘Other Matter' paragraph we state that;

(3) (xxi} There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in thelr report on
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements except for following where the respective auditor have reported unfaverable or adverse
remarks in their audit report to the principal auditor.

Clause number
of the CARQ
Holding report which is
Sr. company/Subsidiary/ | unfavorable
No. | Name CIN associate or adverse
Edelweiss Housing
1 Finance Limited U65922MH2008PLC182906 Subsidiary i {c) ,ifi(d)
Allium Finance
2 Private Limited Uée7120MH2008PTC180229 Subsidiary il (c) and iii ()
Edelweiss
Investment Adviser ik {g), i (d) and
3 Limited U74140TG2008PLC120334 Subsidiary Xvii
Comtrade
Commodities
4 Services Limited U66990GJ1995PLC0O25267 Subsidiary Xvi
Edelweiss Rural & hi{c), i (d), ix
Corporate (d}, ix (), xvii
5 Services Limited U45201TG2006PLC0O78157 Holding and xix
Ecap Equities
Limited (Formerly Hi(e), iii(d),
6 Edel Land Limited) | U74900MH2008PLC287466 Associate ix{d),xvii

for S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

L\rav/&’-%

per Shrawan Jafan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEB2551

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”) and its associate, which are companies incorporated in india, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{ICA1). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statement
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
counting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
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reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internai Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated
financial statements, inctuding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consofidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far
as it relates to these 4 subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

ra"‘r‘t/_)/—

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEB2551

Place of Signature: Mumbal
Date: May 22, 2023




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2023
(Currendy: Indian rupees in millions}

Significant secounting policies
The accompanying notes are ar integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date altached.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30J803E/£300005

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No: 202102

fuemba:
32 May 2023

As at As at
Note i1 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Ngn-current assets
i3] Property, Plant and Equipment 24 2.21673 242749
(B} Investment property 28 3.032.60 353901
(€} Goodwill on consolidation 146.82 146,82
(@) Other tntangible assets 2C 66.32 14.04
{2} Intangible assets under development piv] 12.40 17.38
{f] Financial Assets
{i} investments 3 7.328.03 16,039.73
{ii} Loans a 2673394 3156064
(i} Qther financial assets 5 1,004,07 35167
liv} Other bank baiances ] 427.85 360.97
ig} Deferrad tax assets {net) 7 1.024.41 1,228.67
h} Income tax assets [net) & 1.810.43 147603
{}} Other non-current assets 9 125.44 2068
Totat Nan-Current assets 43,929.08 57,183.30
Current assets
{2} Firancial Assets
{i] Stock in trade il 2,546.55 2.257.81
{ii] investments I3 7.060.54 346.82
{ii} Trade and other receivables 12 38088 226.48
[iv} Cash and cash equivatents 13 1,268.59 3,069.85
{w} Bank balances other than cash and cash equrvaients 14 202108 2,796.36
(wi} Loans 15 733423 11,096.41
{wii] Other financial assets 16 437.0% 402.33
{wifi) Derivative financial instruments . 17.18
{b) Current tax assets (net} 17 971 232.03
{c} Other ¢current assets 13 349 8% 412,13
Total Current assets 2141873 20,857.88
TOTAL ASSETS g?,!ﬂ?.?? 78,060.98
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(2] Equity share capital 14 465,35 465,35
(&) Instruments entiraly of equity in nature 19 2,500.00 9,500.0¢
{c] Other equity 28 {6,983.66) {5,042.21]
Total equity attributable to Owners of the Company 2,981.69 4,923.14
Tquity attributable to Non- 3,900.14 385062
Total Equity §,881.83 8,773.76
isin
Liahilities
Nen-current liabilitles
{3) Financiat lizbilities
[} Borrowings 21 3184468 37.894.7Q
(i} Qther financial llabikities 22 9.779.42 7.053.62
{ailLease liabilities 94.18 103.57
{b} Provisions 23 687 687
{c) Other nun-current habilities 24 175 1.82
Total Non-current {abilities 41.716.90 45,071.58
Current liatiiities
(@) Financiat kabilitins
{i] Barrowings 25 13,635,482 21,185.40
{it) Trade payables %
Total outstanding dues of emero anterpnses and small enterprises 348 .26
Total cutstanding dues to ¢reditors other than micra 379.34 110.87
erterprises 2nd smail entarprises
{iii) Qther financial Labilities 27 247109 247284
{v}Lease fiabiities 4006 3282
{b) Cther current Hiabilities 28 117.92 106.22
{e) Provisions 29 51.45% 4538
{d} Current tax liabilitles 30 15.29 568
Total current kabiities. 15,739.04 24,19564
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABIITIES 65,347,737 73,040.98

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

Edlelweiss Rural & Corporate Servic

b o

Ravindra Dhobate

Company Seeretary

Mumbai
22 May 2023

Limited




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Cansclidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
Fee income 31 926.54 1,286.39
interest income 32 5,526.36 9,045.53
Sale of commodities 5931.92 5.628.40
Dther operating revenue 3 355.39 367.72
Dividend income 4.12 -
Other imcome 34 444 49 1,206.14
Tatal Income 13,188.82 17,534.18
Expenses
Purchases of commodities 5.928.22 5.626.3¢
Net Loss on fair vahue changes 35 4.6 19772
Employee benefits expanse 36 1,092.54 1,208.08
Finance costs 37 6,682.68 9,149.48
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 366.00 399.04
Impairment losses on financial instrument k4 (2786731 52163
Other expenses 39 1,559.67 1,524.59
Total axpenses 15,366.14 18,623.94
Profit/{Lass} befare share in associates and tax 2,177.32} {1,082.76)
Share in profit/itoss) of associates [net of tax) [57.40) {360.82)
Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year (2,234.72} {1,450.58)
Tax expenses
(1) Current tax 84,63 16553
12} Short / {Excess) provision for earlier years 549 [11.74)
{3} Deferred tax 205.02 (8.00)
Profit/{Loss) after tax for the year 12,529.86) {1,536.37}
Other Comprehensive Income/{Lass] for the year
items that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss
Remeasurement gain / loss on defined benefit plans (1.40} (27.73)
Defarred Tax Charge/ (Benafit) 0.66 9,69
Tatal {0.79) (28,04)
Total Comprehensive income (2,530.60) 1,554.41)
Net Profit / [Lass] for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent (2,612.07} {1,703.25)
Non-contrefing intarast 82.21 166.88
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss) for the period attributable to:
Owners of the parent LB - 13.09
Non-controliing interest 1.06 0.08
Total Comprehensive Income /[ (Loss) for the periad attributabie to;
Owners of the parent {2,613.87) {1,721,34}
Non-centralling interest 83.26 166.83
Earnings per share {Face value of Rs, 1¢ each):
{1] Basic 45 [35.000 (23.43)
[2) Dilyted [35.00) (23.43)

Significant accounting policies
The dccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached,

For5.R. Batlibol & Ca. LLP

Chartered Accountants

HCAL Firm Registration Number: 30100!%&00005
N

rewe

per Shrawan jalan
Partner
Membership No: 102102

Mumbai
22 May 2023

For and on biehalf of the Board of Directors

Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

A

Ravindra Dhobale
Executive Director & CFO
DIN No.:05147051

ag Shah
Company Secretary

Mumbai
22 May 2023




Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes
{Currency: indfan rupees in millions)

Equity shara capitat
Balance as 2t 01 April 2022 Changes in equity|Batance  at the} Changes in equity  {8alance as at 31
share capital due|beginning of thejshare capital during {March 2023
to prior pericd|previous  reporting]to current years
£r7ors periad
485,35 - 455,35 485.35

Balance a5 at 0% April 2021

Changes In equity
share capityl due
10 prior period
ertors

Balante at the
beginning of the
pravious reporting

Changet in equity
share capital during
0 CliTent years

Balance as at 31
March 2022

39775

=

387.75

£7.50

48535

Refer Note a0 19 for other details

Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Other
Comprehensive
tncome Tatal attributabie
- Non-Lontrolling
Reserve under Special Reserve Securities Debenture to owners of the Interests
N sectior 29C of the under Sectlon 45-1C | Capital Redemption . ESCP Retalned Revaluatian parant
Capital Resarve N . Premivm redemption
National Housing | of the Reserve bank Reserve reserve earnings Reserve
Bank Act, 1987 | of india Act, 1934 Account reserve
Balance as at 0 April 2021 §1,159.41) 547.80 £0.47 30.00 264451 101.16 2,697.54 {21,970.96) 950.84 16,068.05) 3.868.75
Profit or loss - - - - - (417521} (117571} 165.88
Other comprehensive income - {18.00} {3809 9.05
Rewersal of S0P rights 18,04 2804
Total Comprehensive income for - - - - - B (1,165.76} - {L,165.76) 16693
the year
Transfers te | from retained 2782 50.57 185.07) 6.88 (0.06) -
earnings
Transactions with shareholders in 243360 - 2,433.60
therr capacity as such - on issuance
of preferenee shares
Effect of change in group's interest - - - - {242.00) {242.00) (185.06)
Any other change 45.40 (45.40)
Balance as 3t 3% March 2042 {1,159.41) 57542 131.04 30.00 507811 it le 2,612.47 {13,326.49) 915.44 [5,042.21} 3.850.62
Profit or loss {2.612.07) {2.612.07} 8221
Other comprebensive ingome {:l.!ﬂu {180} 10§
Total Comprehensive Income for - - - - - - 2.513.87) (2,613.87}
the year
Transfers te / from retained 3213 (3213) -
earnings
Effect of change in grouo's interest £62.82 £82.82 4952
Revaluation of proporty, prant & s1.12 -51.12 .
equipment
Any other change 9.59 9.59
Balance a3 at 31 March 2023 (L,159.41) 80755 13:.04 30.00 5,078.11 301.15 261247 [15,248.90] 864,32 {6,983.6¢) 3,900.18

Far 5.R. Batlibol & Co. {LP
Chartered Accountants

ICAS Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E 300005

‘\l"ouu'"'f"

per Shrawan lalan
Partrer
Membersaip ho: 102102

Mumbai
22 May 2023

-

For and on behaif of the Board of Directers

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

A

flavindra Chobale

Executive Direcror & CFO

DaN: 05147051

Company Secretacy

Mumbai
22 May 2023

Ananga Suneja
Dirgptor

DiK¥n,:672387081




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Consalidated Cash Flow Statement

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax {2,234.7H (1.4503.58)
Adjustments for
Impairment pn financial instruments (net) (276.73) 521.66
Depreciation and amortisation expense 366.00 39904
Provision for employee benefits - 2563
Dividend on stock in trade 4.1 -
Share of pro(it from partnership firm - {4.13)
Finance costs 6.682.68 9.149.48
Profit / (Loss) on sake of current and non-current investments 168 4346
Fair valuation on non-currenl investments {356.25) 194.27
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 4,288.46 8.878.81
Changes in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (397410 27.20
Decreasei(Increase} in stock in trade 1288.85; Lans.62
Deereases/(Increase) in loans and sdvances G.118.69 11,905.39
Decrease/{Increase) in other assels (4328} (1.674.53)
Increase / {decrease) m Habilities and provisions 281463 1,597.31
Cash generated from operations 1549225 2233950
Taxes paid (net of refunds) (201.90) (139 66)
Net cash generated Mrom/ (use in) operating activities - A 15,290.34 22,190.14
B Cash flow from investing activities
{(Purchase) ! sale of fixed assets {net} {including capital work-in progress) 30384 175.11
{Purchase) / sale of current and non-current investorents {nel) 223260 (3.098.4%)
Dividend received 4.12 -
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities - B 2.540.56 {4,923.38)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from 7 (Repayment of) loans (net) (B.750.69) (1735295
Proceeds from / (Redemption of) subordinated liabiities (139210 -
Issue of equity share capital 63867 230120
Redemption of commercial paper (nef) (2.809.26) 244995
Dividend and dividend distribution tax paid - -
Principat repayment of leases k15 (49.52)
Interest paid {7.110.60} 19,.236.99
Net cash {used in) / gencrated from financing activities - C (19.632.16) (23,988.31)
Net increase / {(deerease) in cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) {1.801.25) (6,72£.55)
Cash and cash cquivaients as at the beginning of the year 3.069.85 9.791.46
Cash and cash equivalents os at the end ol the year 1.268.59 3.069.85
Note:

I Bank receipts and payments for transaction with group companies in which the turnover is quick. the amounts are large, and the maturities are short are prosented on net basis in
accordunice with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared urder "Indirect Mcthod” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS} 7 "Statement of Cash Flows

For 5.R. Batlibei & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301063E/E300005

L ic w __>"’ A

@9\“}@\

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Ravindra Dhobale nanka Suneja

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer Diregtar Company Secretary
Membership No: 102102 DIM: 05147051 DIN No 07237081
Mumbai Mumbai

22 May 2023 22 May 2023




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accounting policies

1.1 Background

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on October
17, 2006 in the State of Maharashtra. It is part of Edelweiss Group and is a ultimate subsidiary
of the listed holding company Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. The Company provides
loans to group companies and makes investments within the group. It also holds the technology
shared service centre which provides service to group companies. Further, the company owns
property which earns regular rental income.

1.2 Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements relate to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(‘the Company’} and its subsidiaries (together ‘the Group’). The Group is primarily engaged in
(a) agency business which includes advisory and other fee based services, (b) Capital based
business which includes income from treasury, investment income and financing.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules ,2015 (as amended from time to time).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
certam financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value
through Profit or Loss and other financial assets held for trading, which have been measured at
fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR™) and all
values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Group’s
normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed
between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the
consideration for such services rendered, the Group has considered an operating cycle of 12
months.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(continued)

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as on 31 March 2023, comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023. The Group consolidates a subsidiary
when it controls it. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee. Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
result in conirol. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group conmsiders all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the
holdings of the other voting rights holders

. & 8 9

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of
a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies. However, no subsidiaries have
followed different accounting policies other than those followed by the Group for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent Group, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2023,

Consolidation procedure:

* Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

s Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary, refer note 1.19 for policy on business
combination.

+» Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12
Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits
and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.
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Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets, Habilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. With respect to put options granted by the Group to the holders of non-
controlling interests in a subsidiary, where the Group does not have a present ownership interest in
the shares subject to put, till the put remains unexercised, non-controlling continues to be
recognised including allocation of profit or loss, other comprehensive income and other changes in
equity of the subsidiary. However, at each reporting date, the non-controlling interest is
derecognised as if it were acquired at that date and a financial liability is recognised and measured
at its fair value. The difference between these two amounts is recognised as an equity transaction
and attributed to owners of the parent.

Investment in associates:

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee, but its not
control or joint control over those policies.

The subsidiaries considered in the consolidated financial statements.

S. Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of
No Incorporation ownership interest
as at
31 March 2023

Subsidiaries
1 Edelweiss Comtrade Limited* India 100.00%
2 Allium Finance Private Limited India 73.76 %
3 Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited India 5523 %
4 Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited India 100.00%

Associates

1 Edel Land Limited India 37.59%

*Edelweiss Comtrade Limited, a subsidiary of the Group has ceased its operation and does not
have any business activity planned for future. Accordingly, the financial statements for the year
have been prepared on a non-going concern basis

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the
estimates.
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1.4 Revenue recognition

¢  Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset} to a customer. An asset is transferred when the customer
obtains control of that asset. When a performance obligation is satisfied, the Group
recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price (excluding estimates of variable
consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation. The Group applies the five-
step approach for recognition of revenue:

(1) identification of contract(s) with customers;

(it) (i1) Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;
(it1) Determination of transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
{v) Recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied

* Fee income including advisory fees is accounted over the period as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

*  Business support services including web-based services are accounted on accrual basis in
accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Group and the
counterparty.

*  Profit/ loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis.
*  Commodities sales are accounted as per terms of agreement with the parties.

¢ Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method for atl financial
instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

s  Warehouse income is recognised on accrual basis by reference to the agreements entered
with customers.

¢ Agency commission/procurement income is tecorded in pursuant to the terms and
conditions mentioned in scope of work /agreement.

* Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of realisation.

o Interests on delayed payments, warehousing charges and rental income are recognised on
accrual basis by reference to the agreements entered.

e  Profit / (loss) from share in partnership firm is aceounted once the amount of the share of
profit/ (loss) is ascertained and credited / debited to the Group’s account in the books of the
partnership firm.

s Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment
of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

e  Real estate advisory income is recognised basis the terms and conditions mentioned in the
agreement.
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1.5 Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial habilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instroment. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation

or convention in the market place. The Group recognises borrowings when funds reach the
Group.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial Liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financia liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial labilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in
net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which
some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair
value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit and loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.
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Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

*  Amortised cost

¢+  Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”)
*  Fair Value through Profit or loss (“FVTPL")

The Group measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

»  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Sales that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

» if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

* if such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow

»  selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

+  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

*  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Amaortized cost and Effective interest rate (EIR)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit
impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting
the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the
debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
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Financial assets held for trading

The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are recorded and
measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value under Ind AS 109. These include debt securities, equity instruments, mutual fund
units, nifty linked debentures etc.

Disclosure requirement of Ind AS 107-Financial Instruments: Disclosure

Investment in equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries, associates,
and other group companies) at fair value through profit or loss, unless the management has
elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be measured at
FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost as
permitted under Ind AS 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The investment
in other group companies are carried at cost.

Investment in mutual funds and preference Shares

The Group subsequently measures all investments in mutual fund and preference shares at fair
value through profit or loss as these financial assets do not pass the contractual cash flow test as
required by Ind AS- 109- Financial Instruments, for being designated at amortised cost or
FVTOCI, hence classified at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Group has 1ssued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant
‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at
amortised cost using yield 1o maturity basis.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group entity are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Group's own equity instruments.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares issued are classified as financial liabilities and are measured at
fair value at inception and at amortised cost subsequently.

Where the transaction price for the preference shares issued differs from the fair value, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss unless the difference is a deemed capital contribution
from the Group, in which case, the said difference is recognized in equity.

In accounting for these preference shares at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition,
interest expense based on the effective interest rate is recognized in profit or loss. This effective
interest rate is based on the initial measurement of the preference shares (fair value) and the
maturity amount. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss unless the
difference is due to a transaction with a related party, in which case, the same is recognized as a
deemed distribution or return of deemed capital contribution, as the case may be.

Compulsory Convertible Instruments

Compulsory Convertible Debentures/ Preference shares are separated into liability and equity
components based on the terms of the contract. At the inception of the Compulsory Convertible
Instruments, the following two elements will be separated:

(a) a liability component arising from the interest payments; and
(b} an equity component representing the delivery of fixed number of equity shares in future.

On issuance of the Compulsory Convertible Instrument, the fair value of the liability portion is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non convertible bonds. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion of the bonds.
The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound instrument
since it meets Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, criteria for fixed to fixed
classification. The carrying amount of the equity component is not subsequently re-measured.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition 1f either:
s The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

* The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that
ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are
W\ substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
riginal financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The differex_};?g;{_& [P
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\\Qollatera]. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market val

between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets
not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts, in this
section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
1mpatrment.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Group uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The

provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
recervables.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the
reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down
as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the
specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL 1s estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account,

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real
estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as
netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet.
However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at
a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis. However, some collateral, for
example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as

lued using models.
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\adjustments, correlation and volatility,

Collateral repossessed

The Group’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are
transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying
value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option
are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less
cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date in line with the Group’s policy.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest
rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate
risks and commeodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be
held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the
Group’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at cost,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in QCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as
basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Group determines
the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting ail
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (1.e., an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and
model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both ounterparty), funding value
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Determination of fair value

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

*  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to
show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

* Level 1 financial instruments —Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only
if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the
identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

*  Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over
the entire period of the instrument’s life.

* Level 3 financial instruments —Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end
of each reporting period. The Group periodically reviews its valuation technigues
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Group applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its
financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instruments.

The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis
and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting
period.

1.6 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to .the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
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Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders
for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic

earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

1.7 Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the
Group. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retransiated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

1.8 Retirement and other employee benefit

\—\EO ‘5* "\,} 9 Share-based payment arrangements
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Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Group contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a
defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit ptan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is
deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Group are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Group recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Equity—settied share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Gro
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
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These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (“SAR”s) where the right to receive the difference
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Group on
the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent

Group, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Group. These are classified as equity settled
share-based transaction.

- The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is

1.19

CQ\
I
/ AT
g

expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the 'ESOP
reserve’, In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period,
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different
vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful
life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date
of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the
Schedule II for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as
follows:

/
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Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Ulzzt;li?al,t:f(:
Building (Other than Factory Building) 60 vears
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 vears
Solar Power Plant 15 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at
the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Land and buildings are subsequently shown at fair value based on periodic valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Valuations will be
carried out on a regular basis, unless the management consider it appropriate to have an earlier
revaluation, such that the carrying amount of property does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Subsequent measurement of land and building under revaluation model

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to
other comprehensive income and shown as a revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. An
exception is a gain on revaluation that reverses a revaluation decrease (impairment) on the
same asset previously recognised as an expense. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against the revaluation
reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to
profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of
financial position — refer to the accounting policy 1.16. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

0\ An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
Q\economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, The carrying
5\amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at .
7
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the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful
life.

Intangible assets under development are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of
such assets,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as
an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet
date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to
a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories in the form of commodities are valued at weighted average cost or net realisable
value, whichever is lower.

1.13 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow
€oN, of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is
" disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is
i )%)‘possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only
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the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. Claims against the Group, where the possibility of any outflow of
resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

1.14 Income tax expenses

4
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
*profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable
temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible
temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this
is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that:

+ the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

* tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax labilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the Hability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realized in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written down
or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

1.15 Operating leases

Group as a lessee

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises

lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease lLiabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease habilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease paymenits (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or
a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Group as a lessor

The Group’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period.
As a lessor the Group classifies its lease as either operating or financing leases. A Lease is
classified as finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if does not.

1.16 Investment property

Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation
are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost, includin
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Depreciation is recognised using written down method so as to write off the cost of the
investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule I to
the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful
life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the

disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period.

1.17 Receivables from Agency Business

The Group’s business includes ‘Agency Business’ wherein acts as a procurement agent for its
various principals, and renders other related end to end value additive services like procurement
formalities including importing, receiving and storing of goods, insuring, maintenance of goods
in proper condition, dispatch to designated parties, facilitating funding, etc. The Group procures
goods and makes payment to the supplier on behalf of the principal. The payment made to
supplier is shown as Trade receivables (current) and is secured by inventory held on behalf of
principal marked as lien.

1.18 Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used for business combinations by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. At
the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their acquisition date fair values with certain limited exceptions. Goodwill is initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Common controlled business combination means a business combination involving entities or
businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not
transitory, Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
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1.19 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Group determines
the business model at a level that reflects how Group’s of financial assets are managed together
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Group monitors financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the
quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective
of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL. for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or not, to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
. create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After th
‘ -"‘f'pommencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{continued)

change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to

exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

1.20 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, as described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instrumenis

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the
use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

The Group’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

*  Probability of default (PD) calculation includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.

»  The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
50 allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss
and the qualitative assessment,

*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
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*  Inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs,
Exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD)

*  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It is Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

Effective interest rate method

The Group’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 1.6, recognises interest income / expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of
the product life cycle,

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour
and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are integral
parts of the instrument

Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies,

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses with respect to
certain subsidiaries where the Group believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be
recoverable based on the estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved
business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which
the Group expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

Estimating the incremental borrawing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate ("IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. Incremental borrowing rate is
the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment.

1.21 Standards notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from 01 Aprit 2023.

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur o
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The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

(if) Amendment to Ind AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful
by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their *significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities
apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amended requirements.

(iii) Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that

it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations.

Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101.

The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2023.

— The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes te the C lidated fi ial 5t s {continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

As at 31 March 2023 As at 33 March 2022
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
3 Non-current investments
Trade (Quoted}
investments in equity instruments
Unguoted Investments
I tments in equity inst of other Edelweiss group companies (fully paid up)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited * - - 5,181.837 110.35

Investments in equity instruments of other companies [fally paid up)
inditrade Business Consultants Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Agri Warehousing Service Providers (India} Association {AWSPA} -

S0.000 0.80

Investments in debentures {fully paid up)
10.25% ECL Finance Limited Perpetual Bonds - - 1,950 2,126.26
Investment in Alternative lnvestment Fund
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund - - 253 188.79
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund - - 3,592 314.08
India Credit investment Fund Il 261,179 2,611.79 158,897 1,598.14
india Credit fnvestment Fund | 147,909 1.055.49 391,000 2,147
Compulsorily convertidde Debentures
0.01% Edet Land Limited - - 6,600,000.00 6,600.84
0.01% Edet Land Limited 1,060,000 1,000 1,000,000 1,000
Assatiate Pick up - (418.22) - (360.82)
Security Receipts - 2,553.02 - 235872
Mutual Fund - 127.34 - -
Investment in Share Warrants Equity
Team Geo Resources Limited - - 15,000,000 154.47
Pass Through Certificates - 485 26 - -
Less : impairment Allowance*** - (86.77} - (211.13}

7,228.03 16,039.73

e —— [ —-—— A

* Pledged with Catalyst trusteeship Limited @5 o security oguinst issue of the Non convertible Debentures by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited of fs3,506 million
subsequent to the balance sheet dote

“** Impairment afiowances is taken basis the estimate of the fair value of the underlying ossets.
Note: Disclosures as required by IND AS 107 have been separately provided in Note 54 and 57




Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4 Leans- Non Current
At fair value through profit and loss
Unsecured
Capital advances 1,603.22 2,357.87
Amortised Cost
Secured
Receivables from financing business* 583.34 3,63168
Provision for expected credit loss on loans {532.82) {1,328.46}
Nat .50.52 2,303.22
* Secured against securities
Unsecured
Leans and advances (including term Isans) 140.69 3,974.76
Provision for expected credit loss on loans 919.65 {2.62}
1,060.34 3,972.14
Secured **
Term Loans
{i) Housing Loans 22,127.81 20,466.12
{ii) Non Housing Loans - -
22,127.81 20,466.12
Unsecured
(i) Non Housing Loans 3.329.66 2,867.16
Gross 25,457.47 23,333.29
Less: impairment allowance {1,437.60) {405.88}
Net 24,019.87 21,927.41
Loan to employees -
26,733.94 31,560.64
** Secured against tangible assets
5 Other financial assets
Security Deposits 52.65 24.42
Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositories 12.21 871
Other deposits 939.21 318.54
1,004.07 351.67
6 Other bank balances
Deposits with Banks - -
-Fixed deposit with banks {including interest accrued thereon) 427.85 360.97
427.85 360.97

{Refer note 44 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits}




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial staterments (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

7 Deferred tax assets [net}

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation (including intangibles)
Leases - Ind AS 116
Loang
Impairment on loans
Investments and other financial instryments
Provision for Diminution in value of current investments
Emplevee benefit obligations
Pravision for leave accumulation
Disallowances under section 438 of the income Tax Act, 1963
Unused tax credit
MAT credit entitlement
Unused tax losses
Accumuiated Losses
Baorrowings
Gratuity & other employee benefits
Others

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation (including intangibies)
Investments and other financial instruments
Unrealised Gain On Derivatives
Fair valuation gain of investments and stock in trade
Accrued Interest on Stage 3 receivables
Borrowings
Effective interast rate on borrowings
Capitafised borrowing casts on building/ROU
Special Reserve /s 36{1) {vii{}

Nate: Refer note 58 for disclosures on Deferred Tox.

9.72 12.06
34,57 31.16
6541.89 1,129.65
1.98 10.28
5.64 2.17
8.54 4.36
640,50 58192
767.50 566.38
2.28 2.28
0.08 0.08
2,112.70 2,344.85
501.77 50177

- 18.04
185.32 31232

- 135
247.02 123.87
57.65 57.91
96.53 101.02
1,088.29 1,116.18
1,024,41 1,228.67




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
8 Income tax assets [net)

Advance income taxes( Net of provision for taxes) 1810.43 1476.03
1810.43 1476.03

9 Other non-current assets
Other deposits 18.83 18.93
Contribution to gratuity fund {net) 0.15 0.15
Input tax credit 106.47 1.60
125.44 20.68




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

10 Stock in trade

As at As at
Particulras 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
At fair value through profit or loss
(i} Mutual Fund 117.64 -
(ii) Debt securities 2,305.25 2,253.53
(ii#} Equity instruments - -
(iv) Nifty-linked debentures 123.76 4.28
Tatal ' 2,546.65 2,257.81

(i} Stock in trade held outside India - -
(i) Stock in trade beld in India 2,546.65 2,257.81

Total 2,546.65 2,257.81




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Nates to the Consclidated financial statements (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Quantity Amount Quantity  Amount
11 Current investments
Investment in others
Farefront Wealth Adviscrs LLP - - - 0.42
EMSFA |LP - 3.16 - 323
Pass Through Certificates - 17.11
Security receipts
EARC - SAF 1 -Trust - - 255,000 18.14
EARC - SAF 2 -Trust - - 10,000 5.43
Other - 439.58 - 319.70
Compulsorily convertible Debentures
0.01 % Edel Land limited 6,600,000 5,600.59 - -
7,060.54 346.92

Note: Disclosures as required by IND AS 107 have been separately provided in Note S4 and 57

.

(POrar, 2
SO N
z




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {continued)
[Currency: Indian vupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

12 Trade and othar receivables

Recelvables considered good - Secured* 23.74 59.17
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 12226 163.70
Receivables - Credit impaired 592.19 390.58
749.19 619.45
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses 358 31 352.97
380.88 226.48

*secured by inventory held on behalf of principo!

As at March 31, 2023 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 Months - 1 More than 3

Particulars Months Year 1-2 Years | 2-3 years years Total
{i} Undiisputed Trade receivables - considered good 381.44 - - - - 381.44
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - which Bave
significant increase in credit risk - - 8.52 - - 6.52
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 4.86 12.31 344.06 361.23
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - B -
{v] Disputed Trade Receivables — which have sigrficant
increase in credit risk - . - . - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Gross receivables 381.44 - 11.38 12,31 344.06 749.19
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good Q.56 - - - - .56
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which Have
significant increase in credit risk - - 5.52 - - 6.52
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - 4,86 12.31 344.06 381.23
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - i -
{v} Disputed Trade Receivables - which have sigrificant
increase in gredit risk - - . - N .
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - . - - - -
‘fotal ECL Provision on receivables (B} Q.58 - 11.28 12.31 344.06 368.31
Total receivables {net of provision) = {A)-(8) 380.88 - - - -0.00 380.88
As at March 31, 2022 Outstanding for following pericds from due date of payment

i Less than 6 6 Months -1 Mare than 3
Particulars Months Year 1-2 Years | 2.3 years years Total
(i} Undisputed Trade recelvables ~ considered good 228.85 - - - - 228.85
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - which Bave
significant increase in credit risk - - 3.76 0.04 - 3.80
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 5.02 1230 25.02 344.42 386.30
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - -
{v} Disputed Trade Reteivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - -
{vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Gross receivables 128.85 5.02 16.06 25.06 344.42 613,45
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 2.38 - - - - 2.38
i} Undisputed Trade Recelvables —which Bave
significant increase in credit risk - - 3.76 .04 - 3.80
{ii{} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 5.02 12.30 2502 33447 286,76
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - . - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Recevables ~ credit impaired - - - - - -
Total ECL Provision on receivables (B) 2.38 5.02 16.06 25.06 344.42 392.97
Total receivables [net of provision) = (A)-{B) 226,47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 236.48

m?‘? X
/‘*h.\.' e




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {continued)
[Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cheques / drafts on hand - 0.01
Balances with banks 1,268.59 3,069.84
-in current accounts 1,157.44 -
- in fixed depasits with original maturity less than 3 months 111.15 -
(Refer note 43 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits}
1,268.59 3,069.85
14 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits 2,031.09 2,796.36
(Refer note 43 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits}
2,031.09 2,796.36




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
15 Loans - Current
Secured *
Receivables fram financing business 5,625.26 9,105.09
- considered non parforming assers 284.45 327.92
Provision for expected credit loss on loans (55.01) {196.74)
5,854.70 9,236.27
Unsecured
Term Loans {including capital advance) 616.0C 4.44
{oans and advances to related parties 254 01 1,711.92
Loans and advances to employees 13.05 l1.08
Accrued interest on loans given related parties 3.28 441.16
ECL provision {Ind AS} (6.75) {298.46)
7,334.29 11,096.41
*Secured by tangible assets
16 Other financial assets
Receivable from exchange / clearing house (net} 0.67 Q.62
Margin placed with broker 1.39 798
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 435.02 393.73
437.09 402.33
17 Current tax assets {net}
Advance income taxes (net of provision for tax) 9.71 23243
.71 232.43
18  Other current assets
{Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Contribution te gratuity Fund {net} 28.71 -
tnput tax credit 22291 272.38
Advances to employees 174 391
Prepaid expenses 46.69 55.87
Vendor advances 47.82 79.47
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received - -
349,83 412,13




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consali d financial (continyed)
{Currency: Indlan rupees in miflions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
19 Share capital
Authorised:
4,75,00,00¢ {Previous year: 4,75,00,000) equity shares of fs. 10 each 475.00 475.00
€.70,00,00C (Previous year: 5,70,00,000) preferance shares of Rs. 10 each 670.00 670.00
1,145.00 1,145.00
(a} Equity Shares
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,65,35.367 {Previous year: 4,65,35,367) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 465.35 465,35
465.35 465.35
(b} Instruments entirely equity in nature
(i) Corspulsory Convertible Pref: Shares {'CCPS")
13,53,955 CCPS {Previous year Nil} - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of face value of Rs, 10/- along with premium of Rs. 357.66 per
share 500.00 30000
(i} Compuisority Canvertibie Debentures ['CCDs'}y
50,800,000 CCDs {Previous year 50,00,000) of the face value of Rs. 1,000/ each 9,000.00 9,000.00
9,500.00 9,500.00
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year;
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 13 each fully paid
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 46,535,367 465.3% 39,775,367 357.75
tssued during the year - - 5,760,000 67.60
Dutstanding at the &nd of the year 46,535,367 465.35 46,535,367 465.35
Shares held by holding / witimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries f associates:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Percentage
Number of shares Shareholding Number of shares Percentage Shareholding
Equity shares
Edel Finance company Limited * ! 46,535,367 100.00% 46,535,367 100.00%

Details of shares in the Company held by each sharehalder holding more than 5 percent shares:

31 March 2023

31 March 2422

Percentage
Number of shares Sharehalding Number of shares Percentage Sharehalding
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Edel Finance company Limited * 46,535,367 100.00% 46,535,367 100.00%

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each, ach holder of eguity shares is entitied to ane vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the group, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares

held by the sharehoiders.

Terms of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS")

Non-cumulative Dividend of 0.01% per annum on the face value of the CCPS shall be pald 1o the CCPS hafders. The CCPS will be automatically convertibie into equity shares at the end of 10 vears

from the date of allotment i.e, March 30,2021. One CCPS will be Converted ints One Equity $hare. 13,59.955 equity shares will be issued an conversion |

Terms of C Isorily Convertible Deb

(the "Debenture”/"CCDs")

CCB carrying coupon of 0.01% on the face value of the CCDs shall be paid to the £C0 holders.The CCDs wilt be convertible into equity shares within period not exceeding 10 vears from the date of
allotment i.e. March 26,2021. 1 CCD wilt be converted into 2.71 Equity Shares, i.e 24,390,000 equity shares will get issued an the date of conversion of CCD.

Note 1:

The Company has neither alioted any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or as bouns shares nor has it bought back any share during the period of five years

immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

*tnctudes shares held by Nominee Sharehelders




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
- As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

20 Other Equity

Capital Reserve {1,15% 41) [1,159.41)
Reserve under section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 60755 575.42
Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 131.04 131.04
Capital Redemption Reserve 30.00 0.00
Securities Premium Account 5,078.11 5078.11
Revaluation Reierve through other compirchensivie income 864 .37 915.44
Debenture redemption reserve 2.612.47 2,612.47
ESOP Reserve 101.16 101 16
Retained carnings [15,248.90} (13,326.44)
{6,983.66) (5,042.21)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve
The Group recognries profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equily

Reserve under sectlon 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Reserve created under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its
net prolit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend s declared

Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Reserve created under 45:1C{1} in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, a sum not less than twenty per cent of its
net profit overy year, as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss account and before any dividend 1s declared

Capital redemption reserve

As per Compames Act, 2013, capital redempuion reserve 1s created when Group purchases its own shares out of
free reserves or securities premium A sum equal 1o the nommal value of the shares so purchased 15 translesred
to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utiised in accardance with the prowisions of section 69 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Securitles premium
Serurites premium is used to record the premium on sssue of shares. The reserve 15 utllised i accardanes with
the pravinons of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Debenture redemption reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that msue debentures 1o create o debenture redemption reserve
from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. the Group s reguired Lo transler o speatied percentoge
{as provided i the Companies Act, 2013} of the outstanding redecmabde debentures to debenture redemption

teqserve. The amounts credited to the debenture redempliaon reserve may not be atiised except ti redoeem
debentures On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transterred from debenture redemption reserve

to retained carnings

ESOP reserve

Certoin of the Group's employees have been granted options 1o acgquire equity shares of the altimate holding
Company {Edelwerss binancial Services Limated). This reserve represents the cost of these options based on ther
farr value at the grant dates as iecogrmed over the vesting penod of such opteons, to the extend that e ulinate
holding Comgrany has nat recovered such cost from the Group

Revaluation Reserve

The Group decided Lo move 1o revaluation model teom cost model tor ascountimg ol of anset e fhts o
botkding) o at 3150 March 20200 The imansagement apgitosved revabaation of owaoed Lind aoed balodings ckaeeifosl
vnders property plant and equipment alter sseswang the valinidion made by duly apgomtod e pemdont valuer
The ditferem e Inrtwoen valiatieny amaoont e The cayimg valae of L and boddings, 1= aeosmded aider
Revaliation feserye thiaugh other comptehensve incone

————
oo,
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Naotes to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

21

22

23

4

Long-term borrowings

Secured*
Non-canvertible redeemable debentures 16,852 86 11,288 36
Term loans from bank 4,835.74 6,945 67
ISecured by charge on immaovable property with bank|
Interest accrued on borrowings 396.87 398 36
Unsecured
Loans and advances from related parties 3,719.21 18,762.31
Preference Shares Capital - Other than related parties 500.00 500.00
Privately Placed Non-convertible redeemable debentures 5,500.00
6,000.00 500.00
31,844.68 37,894.70

*Secured by charge on immovable property gnd a pari passu charge on the receivables and stock m trade to the
extent equal to the principal and interest amount Le. redemption value of debentures.

Other financial Habilitles

Rental Deposits 67 96 142 00
Other payables 971146 6,916.62
9,779.42 7,058.62

Long-term provisions

Gratuity 146 116
Compoensated keave absences 5.41 571
6.87 6.87

Other non-current llabilitles
Other Payable 175 1.82

1.75 1.82




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)
[Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

25

Short-term borrowings

Secured
Barnk overdraft

[Secured by pari passu charge on inventory and corporate guarantee of ultimate

holding company]
Privately Placed Non-convertible debentures®
Sub-total {A)

*Secured by charge on immovable property and a pari passu charge on the
receivables and stock in trade to the extent equal to the principol and interest

amount i.e. redemption value of debentures.

{nsecured

Loan from related parties

[repayable on demand, at the rate of interest 9%)
Non-convertible debentures

{repayable on demand, at variable rate of interest}
Commercial paper

Less | Unamortised discount

Preference Shares Capital - Fellow Subsidiaries
Preference Shares Capital - Other than related parties
Short term loan from bank

Sub-total [B)

Interest accrued on borrowings (C)
Total {A+B+C)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2,143 88
453.90 3,719.54
453.90 5,863.42
5,339 14 4,208 50
5,500 00
2,320.00 5,370.00
{110.26} {351 00}
2,200.74 5,019.00
426.68 2,214.87
29.05 28.27
s13122 6,276.21
13,135.83 14,829.85
65.70 492.13
13,655.43 21,185.40

,/.. AN,
‘b\’/ . ‘Tv,
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

eonti iy

Notes to the € liduled finascial
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

Avat
3 Mavch 2022

Ml
M Mareh 202V

16 Trade Payahles
Total vutstanching dues of mwro enterpraes amd siall coteiproses B 40 T6
Total vatstadimy dues o gredion ether than migro gnterprngs 1™ R
and small enterprises
ANT.80 FENK]
For trade payables, following ageing dchedule shall be given
Ouistanding for followlng perlods from due date of payment
As at March 31, 2023 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeart | More than 3 years
i} WSME 8.46 8.46.
[u} Others 373179 255 0.74 226 379.34
{mjDrsputed dues MSHME -
{iv]0isputed dues-Others .
Total I8L.28 188 74 2.28 IAT.NG
Dutstanding lor following periods from due date of payment
As al March 31, 2022 Total
Less Than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
{1} MSME 726 1.26
{ii} Others 307 65 CET I I G4 310.87
(w)Disputed dues MSME
{iviDisputed dues-Qthery -
Total A14.91 .41 1.76 .65 RLAR]
17 Apwher Muuwcial lsbilities
Book overdran R NES
Avctied wilanes and lenelis 22 A% (3= 1N
Retentuem nwmey pavible 12 1.0
Erher pyables (me g o acconnt ol scombsatim . asignents [EARL ltsta 75
Securiteatnon babiny tmciaciog lean assipgned ande 106G schenies 1413t 1,580 27
Rental Prepasits AR S
I eston payable on assigned hians SrNi M
24T AT R
OG- Pl Cuaalit CGunantee Sehene
I (her current lisblligles
Woalhbelding Brves, Connds & service s and othet e pusdhie 41 54 4w 4
Oty ey X W77
1179 Iidh, 11
29 Short-lerms prosivions
IPros o fon empliree Bengtiy
Gapahindy LS 1544
Usnigenaival aliei ey A6 WK
Thotv ivion Tow ey 11 o i
4145 A58
o Current tuy Habillties (net)
Povrs i b Lanatmsst et ol adsance Lavk 15 = REIL]
[EN 1] S4H
. T
mw & rh
(‘\ “-"U’ I o ..
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the C onsolidated financial statements (continued)
(C urrency: Indian rupecs in millions

For the vear ended kor the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 Mare 2022
Fee inconw
Incon ¢ from ven o od es eevices - 7%
Husiness SUPPOI sufvicy s i 7.6 1
Advinory inceme (incluchin referral and arcan rer ey 3 15 o8 |
terest income
Iterest bed 1 droam Joans ST e 71
Inte st meome on loams ffom otliers 509 4. 316 K0
Inter st mcome on fixed deposits L 3 17190
Enterest ncome on debl mstrument RV AR L.oss 1
Interest incame wn margm with brokers - ol
Interest [icome - Others Ry IR AR
Inceme o hiredd UOINTL 11330 750
Inter st mcune -Pass irogh Cernfivates 5751 -
of uperafing rescnue
Loan sl e i
Rental income
¥ incomy
Pote wsale of D e wssed taen) 0ty
Miscelkmemis i 11e RURTH
Tiber sty Do wie v el e 4381
Prolit (o spat ool on tonm mvestiient 1" 71
et (Gaain) Loss on Tuir vulue changes
Povis on tealing of seounties fnet} 857 His 3]
Profit (loss) o tead g equoty der sateve istns e is (ne S0 ) 3y
Farr vadue g 1o spon rsahaaton of eeal st o ol ed) {193 SX) [RAS Y]
IV Securiy receipls < bS I
Income distnibution from Fouwd {147 7o)
Toss on sitle o bon e torm s est nent -1t i
v ot {prodit) leas o praaioer vp ln t o MR RY]
Fane value fpamy b gy L IR [EARH
Fane value gam Tho b tranwen ts cAY 1 tn
tiatitkLoss on e ob il ol it (Y 11 (Y] i
LY7. 7%
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\;,\}

=
UMBAI *»

» $
B Ao



Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended =

31 March 2023

For the veam
31 March 2022

37

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other furds

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) and Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on debentures

Interest on term loan

Interest on bank overdraft

Interest on loan

Interest on loan frem group companies

Interest on Joan froam others

Interest - others

Discount on commercial paper

Financial and bank charges

Interest on debt securities

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income tax
Interest on subordinated debt

Interest on working capital demand loan

Interest on borrowings other than debt secunties
finance cost - Preference Shares

Impairment on financial instruments

Bad- debts on Loans and advances written off

Loss on sale of loan assets sold to assets reconstruction company
Diminution in value of investments

Provision for non performing asscts

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for standard assets

” -\\_"\li\)’,' _‘\

NS

O\\

( {;mm. ) ’)

iy nrco“

957.68 1,094 28
5362 5359
7.23 1336
73.61 43 86
1,092.14 1,205.08
2,255.18 3,493.95
1,015.94 1,594.80
13.86 21.45
2.07 3,107.83
1,686.71
919.06
13.08
410.75 42001
18.90 36.46
. 90.82
1258 13.19
105
56.25 56.27
47.87 11101
37.83 23.36
192 60 179.27
6,682.68 9,149.a8
269.65 80.28
74.64 347.14
10.13
{601.83) 15161
(26.64) {10.04)
0.32 {49.35)
{276.73) 521.65




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

For the year ended
31 March 2023

39 Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Advertisernent and business promotion B.74 4.52
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 15.09 17 80
Cormmission and brokerage 10.93 16.59
Communication expenses 27.07 23.94
Computer expenses 126.80 125.85
Computer software 109 .80 90.03
Clearing and custodian charges 3.34 1.93
Centribution towards corporate social
responsibilities 572 10.53
Directors sitting fees 1.02 1.58
Electricity charges {net}) 4114 9.90
Foreign exchange loss {net) 008 0.05
Freight & Forwarding Expenses - 0.02
Insurance 244 9.57
Legal and professional fees 651.05 656.39
Loss on sale of fixed assets {net) 8.48 413
Membership and subscriptions 39.70 0.39
Office expenses 90.11 109.59
Postage and courier 2.02 3.70
Printing and stationery 5.33 10.26
Rates and taxes 126.03 808
Rating support fees 12.35 12.5%
Rent 5.57 8258
Repairs and maintenance - building 0.06 0.07
Repairs and maintenance - others 13.99 10 26
Security transaction tax 507 395
Goods and service tax expenses B83.84 63.41
Stamp duty 20.51 13.50
Stock exchange expenses 1.06 14,57
Transportation charges 002 573
Travelling and conveyance 42.68 3034
Warehousing charges 0.42 55.00
Loan origination costs amortised 10.00 112.69
Miscellaneous expenses 29.19 23.35
) 1,559.67 1,524,59
Auditor’s remuneration:
As auditors 14,91 17.70
Reimbursement of expensies 0.18 010
R L i = ——e
\MBOf ¢ E}\ G‘,\\mr.m;?‘

X



Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Motes to Conoslidated Financlal Statements (contlnued)
(Currency Indian rupees in millions})

40 Segment reporting

B0
¢ @
@, -
. )
‘0 UMBAIL
¢ ‘, “(I

Primary Segment {Business segment)
For management purpase,the Group’s business is organised into business segments based in products and sennce as five reportable segments as
maentioned below:

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business Capital intensive business includes Lending, investing and investment property

Treasury management interest income and trading in securitics

Business Support Services Centralized support services in the nature of administration, comphance payroll, finance and
accounts, Technical support etc. provided 1o group companies

Warehouse services Warehouse services includes wareheusing and collateral management services for agn commodities

Trading in commodities Purchase and sale of agri commodities

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically wdentified with indmdual segments or have
been allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and labilities have been
prepared.

The Exceutive management committee is the Chief operating decision maker{CODM) and moemiors the operating results of its business units separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

Secondary Segment

Since the business operations of the Group are pnmanly  ncentrated i ndia, the Gr up ¢ n dered to operate only n the dome tc =g e t and
therefore there 1s no reporiable geograph ¢ segment

The following table gwves informat  non terms of provisions of Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting  nd AS 108)

As at/ For the year As at/ For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
| Segment Revenue
a) Capital based business 7.623 62 10 908 82
b} Treasury management 69921 122062
¢} Business Support Services 720.94 740 13
d) Warehouse services 5546
e} Trading in commed ties 4,72 4,584 77
f) Unallocated 1 24 38
Total Income 13,188 82 17,534.18
Segment Results
a) C pital based business {2.144 86} 2 30)
b} T easury management {379.07) 940}
¢] B siness Support Services 27139 A7
d) Warchouse services {378)
¢) Trading in commaoditics 297 172
f} Ur altocated 13485 24 40
Loss before tanation (2,234.72) (1,450.58)
Less Prov onfortix t 295 14 85 79
Profit after taxation (2,529.86) 11,536.37)
Scgment Asscts
a) € pita Based business, 1 W
b} Trsasry management 274 b4
¢} Business Support Services 64
d} Warchouse wervices
o) Trading in commuodit iy
13 Unadlocated PR 2042 M
Total 65,347 17 78,040 98




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financlal Statements (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

a0 Segment reponting {continued)

w Segment Liabilitles

a} Capital based business 58,222.59 66,992 90
b) Treasury management 156.96 2,256.87
<) Business Support Services 0.63
d} Warehouse services 16.82 15.82
e) Trading in commaodities -

f) Unallocated 69.57 -
Total 58,465,594 69,267.22

1. Non-cash expenditure aggregated to {Rs.266.98} million for the year ended 21 March 2023 {Provious Year Rs. 1,140.60 million)
2. No single customer represents 10% or mare of the Company’s tolal revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements [Continued)
{Currency : Indlan rupees in millions)

41

Disc! e as required by Indian Acc ing Standard 24 - “Related Party Blsclosure®:

List of Related Parties as at March 31,2023 is as under:

A}

8}

i

(o}

(8]

(L]

6]

1)

Names of related parties by whom control Is exercised
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, vltimate Holding Company
Edel Finance Company Limited . Holding Company

Entlties which are controlled by the Company

Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited

Edelweiss Investment Adwiser Limited

Allium Finance Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions
ECL Finange Limited

Edelcap Securitigs Linnted

ECap Securities and Investiments Limited {Formerly known as Ecap Equibies Lirmeted)
Edelweiss Altemative Asset Advisors Limited

Ecap Equities Limited {Formerly known as Edel Land Limnted)
Edel Investments Limited

fdelweiss Takio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelgive Foundation

Edelweiss Inlernational Singapore Pte Limited

Edelwerss Alternative Asset Adwisors Pre. Linited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

ZUND General hsurance Limated (farmwerly known os Edelweiss General insurance Company Limited}
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limmted

Edelwesss Secuntios and investments Private Limited

Edveiwenss Global Wealth Management Limited

{ delweiss Multi Strategy Tund Advisors LEP

Edelwerss Value and Growth Fund

Incha Credit Investment Fund 1

Sekura India Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstrirction Company Linwted Trust
Edelwerss Povate |guity Tech Fund

Edetwerss Resolution Advisors LLP

£C Glabat Limited

Assaciate of Uitimate holding company {EFSL) with whom the Company has transactions {upto March 30,
023)

Nuvama Asset Management Lamted ((formerly knowr 34 ESL Securities Lirnited)

Nuvama Capital Services (IF5C) Limited (formerly known as Edelwess Securiiies (050} Linsted)

o Contodial Services Limited {lormerly known as Edelwedss Capatal Services Limiteddp

o Wealth and Investiment Linled {formerly known as Fdelwerss Brokeng Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Tmanc: Linwted {lormerly known as Edelwens Farance and investinents Liimited)

A Woealth Managesent Lunated {lonmedly known as Edebwnss Sequrities Liemitedd)

a Cleanng Services Limited {formetly known as debwess Costodd Secvies Dimited})

Key Management Persannel

M1 Raindra thobale [ eetotses Directon KB Chiel Fmancaial OMcer) fw e P At 2, )
M CRarg Diliphumar Skl {Caispany Secretayh {w e § May 2/, 2027]

M Shunlly Kt {Cotspsoiny Sod i bary] {Resigned wee § Apnl 8, 1122

Maricn Shanins

Non Executive Directors
Mr Nikht Juhan

Mr SantoslDa
My Aty Sunea

e b

Independent Directors

M Vid i

M Kunoasagarar URisioeh {ujpstse August 81 20226
B el Dk (W e Moy 25 2000)

Trusi Name-

VARC Frast S0 g
PARE frgst st A0S
FARC Dok s 414
TARC Framl ™ 44/
CARC Trust % A%
FARC Frusl S0 AN




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the fi ] {Continued}
{Currency : Indlan rupees In mllions)

Relatred Parties (Continued)

{1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Rs. 1n Millions}

Particutars Hame of related parties 2022-23 2021-22

Capital account transactions during the year

Equity shares ksued 1o Edel Finance Caimpany Limited 2,501.20

Nen-Cumulative Non-Convertible Red: able Preference Share issulEdeI Finance Company Limited 20.00 -

Redemption of Preference Share issued Edel Finance Company Limted 1000
Ecap Equities Lunited 10.00

Loans taken fram Edelweiss Fmanaal Services Limiled 16,312.30 36,391.63
ECL Finance Limited 1,590.0¢
Edel Finance Comaany Limited 2.639.55 45.00
Edel Investiments Limited 1,866.40 15,308.88
Edelweiss Retail finange Limited 250.00 11.780.0¢
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,079.80 4,963 .72
Ecap Equitics Limited 6,133.15 32,313.66

Laans repaid to Edelwesss Finangial Services Limited 11,956.03 29,749 48
ECL Finance Lirmsted 1,590 00
Edel Finance Company Limited 949 20 5051
Edel investments Limiled 2,551.40 14,762 21
Edelweiss Sacuribies And Investments Private Limited : 040
Edoiweiss Retal Fiance Limited 3,710.00 £.310.00
Edelcap Secunities Liited 2,024.26 4,019.26
Ecap Equities Limted 4,785 86 17.766.21

Laans given to ECL Finance Limited 4.040.00 18.787 .86
Edel Finance Company Limiled 8,604 80 131211
Edel Investments Limited 5,609.50
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,428 58 784 4R
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Linuted 156.44 1,125 60
Muvilina Wealth and Inyestment Linited 1,(K0.00 HH 00
Edelweiss Securnties And lavostments Private bimsed 11850 5,000 17
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 22000 110.00
Leap tquities banuted 10,481 57 949, 30% 10
Etielwerss Retal ¢ e Lmikedk 1,750.00 #2400 00
ECap Secatios And Investliments Limted L.B0.OD

Lavdnty. 1 paned Iy LCL Fiprance Linite) 4,82{.00 18,507 .86
1del Finunce Company Limded 11,006 40 9.64%51
Cdeleap Secorties Linuted 1,428 58 784 48
Edel Investrnents imited 5,604 50
Edclwedss Glolml Wealth Management Lunited 22584 2, HHHIb
Fdelwesss Retail Dhsance Limited 1,750.00 8.740.00
Nuvaing Wealth and Investiment Liniged 1,000.00 00 00
Lefelwesss Secunties And lnvestinents Priviate Livitiee) 2,322 716 3,489 19
Edelwerns Mteraative Asset Advisos Lirmted 13000 119
Loap Lauties Liited 10,280 7% 0%, 3706
TCap Securities And Investments Limited 1,800.000

Purchase ol Securnily from ECH bnance Lynited 2147 00

Investnents in funds sold to HOU Bananee Lwnitad PIER L]
Edelweiss Retanl 1 4o L) 1,025 a4

Investane s I eguity shuires skl la Fefislwisss Finbtis 1ol Setvicrs Lirifee) oL
Ldrlwess Securdies And Investinents Povate Limited 404 I8 LAY




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the i lal [Continued)
{Currency : Indlan rupees in milllons)

Related Parties (Continued}

{1} Transactian and Balances with refated parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Rs. i Millions}

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Invesiments in Compulsary Convertible debentures al £cap Equities Limited 3 1.000.00
‘Withdrawal of capital fram partnership firm Edelweiss Resolution Advisors LLP 0.13 Q.24
Edelweiss Mults Strategy Fund Adwisors LLP . 702
inwestments in Other India Credit Investiment Fund It i 238.33
Edelweiss Yalue and Growth fund 1009
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund 5.83
Invastment in Secunty Receipt issued By EARC Trust SC 417 36593
EARC Trust $C 418 273.19
JEARC Trust sC 247 566.27
JEARC Trust sC a5 - 294.44
EARC Trust 5C 459 137 10
Puncipal Repayment tram fund India Cridal Investment Fund il 77961
Margn placed with Nuvama Cleanng Serwces Limvied LAXTE 145252
Edul Inyestments Lunited 2418 120.2¢
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited a 80.00
Mlargn withdrawn frgm Novama Clearning Services Lirmted 1,7 &F 1,4%0.24
Fdol Investments Limited M I 125 67
Nuvarma Wealth Managenient Lamied 86 00
Profi on trading ol denvatives Edel Investments Limited A2 03
Amount paid to broker for cash segment Edel Investrments Lionted 148 86
Nuvam.a We.lth Management Lirniad 23151
Amount tecewed (rom broker fos cash segment i del investments Lirited 168 84
Nuviing Wealtlh Mandagement Lenites) 113 BY
Sale of Security Resepi Edlelwerss Assel Recorntruction Compraity Lirnitedd Tiist 119 71 -
Laelweiss Aetol Finanes Linsted 18 e
Purchase of lixed assels frais Nuvaria Weslth Masagenent Liimited LR o7
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Dimited 003
Edlebwariss Financil Seryvices Linited 014
ECL Linangce Limited [13Y] 050
Edelweiss Retal Findnce Limited) 014 033
Eeag Equties Limited 00%
Nuvama Wealth Finnge Lumited 115
Edel Inyestments L 014
Fdelcap Securities Limited 028 001
LdeiGuve Fonmbation o
Nuvadtiai Cleaang Services Limsted oo
Sl of fed wisels ta Nuvam,y Wealth et Lniied ViR [1]H]]
Nuvrnd Ol g el vaces Liiptand [LEY
Nuvarma Wirdlth and Investment Lsnuted Q0N o0/
Edleloap & s Limited [1XE53
Faetwoiss Dinandnal Seovices imited on
FLL Fingnd o Linateed . 1
SUNTY Genorad Invg anees Lunnaedd flaiemaetly kivoswiy o4 G ditbwasiss LYy
e m1e g Tvsan o 1 Coenpraoy L
Lidrbwersa Avsat e onstiue Loy i
Nuvaina Waealth Dt Ll {HM
Leap Lagntiey Lumibect (N1
Cuetwring Hetnl Froaige il 1 (12
Lakisktpvas Tormrvalatuony LI
o - 1 delwirisy Cdab.l Wit Morigeisest Dimited A LR
1 Pew Saaet Matnigetnt Lisntedd i1z
Daled Irvwarstorsong s Lpontind 00 0
Fulebare i Alteaniative: At Aalvrsains Dnted [LXE] il
MNavama Asset Management Linuted DAL
Fatrluen Aol Wealth Markagesient Lieatead LIE) 1)
[ elelweerss Fibai sal Seryices Cinsted LiE)1]
e T—,
e w3,
\)l!!{h’(. “
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the fl ial 1Ce d}

{Currency : Indlan rupees In mlllions)

Related Parties [Continued}

{} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Rs. a0 Millions)

Particulars Name of related partles 2022.23 2021.22
Purchase/subscription of debentures from Ecap Equines Limited 157.00 3,961.00
N a Assct Management Limdted 53.35
Edelweisy Takio Life Insurance Company Limited 252.06
Edel Investments Limined 314.37
ECL Finance Limited 150.72
Edelweiss Retasl Finance Limited 0.20
Sale of Debentures 10 ECL Finance Lsmiled 1.889.04
Edel lnvestments Limited 3,890.00
Edel Finance Company Limmed 1912
Nuvama Weahh and tnvestment Limited 115.88
Edelcap Securities Liited A50.76
Edel Finance Company Limited 2.130.43 E
Ecap Equitios Lmited 311292
Maturity of debt secunities Ecap Equitses Limited 375.45%
NCD loan sold to ECL Finante Limited 1.301 50
Issuange of debontures o Ecap Equities Limiteid 5,500.00
Redemption of debentures held Ecap Equitics Liimitod 1,076.63
ECL Finance Lemited 120000
Ecap Equibies Limited 5,159 78
Ldilweny Asset Reconstrat b Cosigsy Limited 152 89 191 63
Hedemption of debentures hebd by Ecap Equeties Lumtedd 4,440.10
tdeleap Securbees Lemited 35550
tddelwerss Retad Pindnce Limited B.30
Loan porttalio purchase uider direct assignmaent COL Finange Linmited 1,998 46 1005 74
Edelwirins Retal binance Limited a7 82
Lon sold under Secuntssation JUNG Grnaral Insurance Limited [Formerly knawn as Edelwens 100 81
General Insutance Company Lunited)
Ldelwesss 1ak Lite Instirance Company Lumited 99t G
Non Comvirible Detxomtores sulisealied by LCap Equities Linuited 1.584 28
Secunty deposit recewed from Nuvarma Wealth Management Limited . 1 R1]
Nuvama Cleanng Services Dinuted B4 4a
Ferlwens Tokio Life Insirance Company Lisited .04
Secunty deposi sepait to Fdrlwerys Glubal Wealth Management Lansted 75 00
Leagy Laguatues Lmted 13.08 1940 (Hy
FCL Finance Limited 1400 S0 00
U ¢t sofd 1o ARC trind Fdvlwins Avset Redonstrue ion Camprang Limited 1,925 70
il Satosh Dadheedk YHI
Moy Sl 2491
Asbariya Suncja Ju o0
A Shaly 116
Strnlly Xedsa (00t
Ravieadva Dhetiale [ 197
Mikhil b T
Diredton Sitting F s KLf S garan § bsiiiali 414 1) 46
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Edelweliss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the fi fal {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

Related Parties {Continued)

{1} Transactian and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Rs. i Mullions)

Particulars Namao of related partles 2022-23 2021-22
income
Business support service charEs from ECL Finance Limited £8.31 7236
Nuvama Wealth and tswvestment Limted 352 297
Nuvama Wealth Man Lmited 244.00 68.18
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.9 076
Nuvama Clearmg Setwces Linmted 014 Q.26
Edelweiss Assel Reconstruclion Company Limited 35.09 18.10
Edel Finance Company Limited 2.71 0.76
Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited 46. 76 4367
Edelweiss Global Weallth Management Linuted .07 024
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 617 346
ZUNO General nsurance Limited {formerly kaown as Edelwens 51 88 4198
General Insurance Company Limited)
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 489 381
Edelcap Securities Lurnted 6544 56.05
|Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.1 08/
Edel loyestments Linuted 5.45 157
Edelweiss International {Singapore] Pie. Limued 7.89 6.29
Ecap Equitics Limited 1396 17.15
Edalweiss Tokio Lde Insuiance Company Lirmited 1262 68.00
Edel F d J B.15 557
Edelweiss Secunties And Investments Privale Limited 44 79 43101
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited 001 00l
Nuvamna Assel Management Linited 0.03 004
Sekuta Indid Management Limited 0.50
ECap Securdies And Invesiments Linultedd 000
Corporate Guaranlee Commission Income ECL Finance Liited 002 0oz
Edel Finance Company Linuted 687 693
Cdehwaass Retail Tnange Lunited 0.00 [1143)
Adwisory lees carned Irom FCL Finance Limited 2822 17 50
Edelwanss Rotad Dinande Dmited 291 4 30
Service bee receved lrom Fdolwerss Retail Finonce Linted 00/ 026
LCL Finance Limated 01y on
Sevice charges pand | detwoiss Bt Fovance it L 150
ECL Niname e Linnted 14H 144
Corpenate Guarantes support lee Edrlwerss Linancil Serviees Linsded a1n
Feap Fguiies Linuted a1 1135 ]
Professional lees pad (o FCL Finarig o Gsmiled) 155
Hisk and rewird shanoing fee expense Edelwens Bnancwl Services Limaled 194
Heimburserment of ARC management fer fiom Fdelweiss bnancial Services Limited 1139 0
Hating Supprot Fees income Eddelweass §unanctal Sevaces Lmted Q0w
Nuvam.g Wealth Management Lisnied i
Nuvaima Wesalth Linang e Qimited 0l
FCL Finanr e Lennterd 0 4HH
Nuvaina Wealth atal Investment Lunited 07
Nuvatna Cleating Setvices Linited (D3]]
Loledwring Avaet Reconstom bon Company Dimted o7
1 dol Finane e Company Luted 10H
T ddebw vy Retl Fun nted T |
Eelebwors Alleanative Asvyet Advisias Linited (el 1]
Foap Fepuitmey Lin o
batact st iise aaenne arw cloed s o Duchuwg C11Y) FOU D e Lunited = 14144 PN :
Labelwgeas s Bl 1 isnsise e L wnitedd 10} I td
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Edelweiss Rural 8 Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the fl ial its (Contlnued)
{Currency : Indlan rupees in millions}

Related Parties {Continued)

{1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Rs. ny Millions)

Particulars Narne of related partles 2022-23 2021-11
Interest ncome on Nilty Linked Debentures Ecap Equities Limited 26359 83839
Interestincome on loen from ECL Finance bsmited 5250 26507
ECap Secunitiey And Investments Lumited - 22893
Nuvama Wealth and lavestment Lunited 1136 16.51
Edelcap Securities Limned 30137 130
{Edelweiss Alternative Asset Adwisars Limited 3166 735
|Edel Investmenits Limmed 3 10.01
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 10.40 111.37
Edelwmss Retal Finance Limited 225 1415
Ecap Equities Limited 151 51 1,196 31
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 10.69 65.72
Edcl Finamce Campany Limited 160.07 340.63
ECap Secufties And Investments Limwted 2361
Inkerasy income on margin placed with Nuvama Cleaning Setwces Limited 016
Inferest Incoene on security deposit 1o ECap Equities Limsted - 91319
Share of Prolitin LLE Edelweiss Reselution Advisors LLF 003
Edelweiss Mulu Strategy Fund Advisors (1P - 119
Share of loss from fund Edetweris Mult Strategy Fund Advisors LLP Ll
Edelwarss Résolution Advisors LLP 12
Rental income from ECL Finance Limned 12 04 11 ™
Edelwinss Financsal Services Limited 28 68 26 83
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 1254 1293
Nuvainay Waealth and Investaient Liited 1 020
Edalweiss Allernative Asset Advisors Limited 1.m 45 14
Editlwerss Asset Reconsteuction Comgany Linuted 64 11 4 1
HNuvama Cleadong Serwices Limuted 98,11 94
Huvnma Wealth Finace Limited 0.17 .
(delcap Securiies himited ra} 1401
Edlel Investme iy Limited 18 72 525
Edelweds Adiet Management Limaterd 138/ 24 96
Feap Fquites Limited 442 21
EchelGrvee Foemtatiomn 118 112
Nuvarmna Asset Management Limited 0ol
Investment management suppart serwce from Ededwaiss Intermatuns (Singapore] Pie Limited 820 1 60
Cost seimbursemaents recovered from ECL Linaace Limited 1in P
Edclweiss Fingnoaal Sorvices Lusles) [L3}] 101
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited a8l 12 56
Nuvima W alth sl Investment Linated) 0 {H; 784
Laetwr s Alternativee Assel Adyraois Dinmterd 1.8 174
Nuvarg Cleaning Services imited LI JH1
Eadeleag Secintuey Lunted 114 477
Novama Wealth Fusange Lirmaged 0ol (U]
Lehasbwenrss Global Wanalth Mansgesnert Lusited e
Fdulinvestments Linvted) } 04 193
ZUNO Geasesal fnsut s e Logted ormerly ks s Db P [(3Y]
Genetal isurance Comgray Linnted)
delwiiss Tokio Life Insuranee Company Linuated LX)
foap Fepuitnes Linwited ual 044
EdelGuiye T aundation Q0% 008
Edel Finange Company | ool
Eelrlworss Asset Matnigentent Lo esd (+HO [NL)
| dulweriss Asset Recomsdron on Company isied PA 1
Cdelwiriss Retant F e Lumited 1) () [ 54
Nusrana Ansel Mo i Limted LALE no
At Cleaning Servi os Limited u
Valeelwarisy Sedtanibies And Tvest tesats Povate finnted 1) 00




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Contlnued)
{Currency : Indian rupees In millions)

Related Parties (Continued)

(¥} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Rs. in Millions)

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22

Incosme distiibution from Fung ledia Credit Investment Fund 1l 64.00
Edelwriss Value and Growth Fund 283.76

Expenses

Cleanng exprenses W Nuvarna Clearing Services Limited 2.86 0.28
MNuvama Wealth Management Lurnted 000

Contribution lowards corporate social responsinbities Edelgrve Foumdation 5.72 1053

Cost reinbursement ta Edelwersi Famanon) Services Lmited 1.85 9.58
Nuvama Wealh and Investment Limited 18.00 0.08
Nuvaima Wealth Management Limited 16.5¢ 1.04
Edelweiss Alernative Assel Adwsars Limied 13.92 11.54
Ecap Equitics Limited 21.55 [E:¥)
Edelcap Secunties bunited 101 0.01
Nuvama Wealth Finance Linated 008
ECL Finance Linuted 46 75 132 37
Edelwoss Securitiss And Investments Private Limited 0.00
Nuvama Clhearing Serwices Litnited 064
Edelwerss International {Sagapore) Ple Limited 0.01
Ecelweiss Retad Finance Lonited 287 9.15
EdelGive Foundaton 0.00
Edel tovestinents Limited Le7
Edel Finance Company Linuled 012
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 025

Trade exposure charges pad to {Nuvama Cleaning Services Limited 1

Management fecs paid 10 ECL Famanie Limited 360 /2 32660
Edlebweiss Altermative Asset Adwisors Lirvited 1392 15 40
Edelwaiss Avvar Reconstructinn Campany Limited 19 40 017

Drokerage anal Gimssson expenses Nuvama Wealth Mansgement Linsted 708 121
ECL fonanie Dt 000
Ecap Equities Lunited 0.00
Edel lovesunents Lumited 184 [1XH])
HNuvama Weath and tnvestment Limited 9/ a0 003
Cdelwenss fmancial Services Linwted 250

Enterprse service chatge pad e FCL Fivance Lunited 2012

FSOP cost resmbursement Edlebwaring Fibang il Setvices Linkited 15% LR

Itterest expenses on loans ltom Foelwanss Finangial Seqcwces Linmted 1.,710.41 2005 13
bolel uvanee Comgrany Lanteq) 2% 67 [ Y
TCL Fingnge Dinited 415
Lodeleag Secunities Lunited 1% 14 47 40
ol bvestnants {emsted 02 52 29
Lcap Bguities Linw RLLRL] ZH1 15
2 dle 155 Secudie s And Invistiments Povate Linitesd a0k
Ededwiss, Retal L mane Linmted 14597 1141

IR 0L b T T Se i FUNG General T e Livited flormerly Snown s Fileiwers 01
Gene ol Insu e Conspany innted)
Flrtweens Terkin Dife Tt ang e Cosbpriing Limitad ol
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
[Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

Related Parties {Continued)

{1) Transactlon and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

[Rs. 10 Millions)

Particulars |Name of related partles 2022-23 2021-22
Interest expenses on debentures Edelcap Securities Lirmnited 76.35 74.37
Ecap Equities Limited 47305 A00 14
Edel Investinents Limited 0.44 166.01
Edelweiss Securitics And Investments Prvate Limited 1240
ECL Finance Limited 049 368
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limiled 0.16 0.02
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limated 0.51 081
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Lemited 5.01 2.58
ZUNO General Insuiance Linted {loimerly known as Edelwerss c82
General Insurance Company Linited)
Interest on CCD Edel Fmiance Company Limutad 1.71 0.90
interest / dividend on preference shares ECL Finance Limited 8i.64 7498
Ecap Equities Limied 11017 103.50
Interest Expi - ICD Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 2N
Bal with related parties as on 31 March 2023 - {Assets)
Accrued interesl income on loans given Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 621
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limuted .23
ECap Securitios And Investmants Lemited 5.50
Edelwetss Securitics And Investiments Private Limitod tLa3 738
Ecap Lauibiws Linited 856 110.81
Edel Investments Limited 0.00 0.00
Edel Fibance Company Limited 41 82
ECL Finance bimited 511 159 32
Edelwerss Allernative Asset Adwisars Linwitest 112 36)
Interest receivable on debenturys from Cdelwerss Retal Turaie Limted o0 004
Cdel Fingoce Company Lmited 178 178
(cap E quitees Litated - 15 a0
Investment in Pactnedshup Farm { dalweiss Resolution Advesors [LP 0.10
Feelweiss Mult Strategy Fund Advisors LLP o0
Investiments in equity shares m Edetwens Asset Reconstroction Compay Limited 11035
Livestiment sy ollicry Ecdetwariss Veblue and Groveths Fuad 11409
1 delweiss Private Equity Tech §und 191 81
Inddia Credit Investinent Fund it 26111 1,507 0%
Ivestosent i debt mstiaments of Frledwens Asset Recoastiue hon Conpany Lenied 1,868 # 1,300.86
Leap Lapuities Limintaee) oW
Investment in N D Edel Firvane e Conpany Limited I'TRE;
InvesUment i Secqrdy Hee egaty saied Dy LARC Trust S¢ 401 449 6D 19951
TARC Trunt 5C 418 20411 24195
LARU Trust 30 447 a4 0 L4131
FARC Trust 5C 4% 22 1) 282k
LARL Trust S0 4% 11124 110
Partnes's corrent accaount  recevable froms Filelwers Reolution Adveors LLP o
Lalelwerys Mulls Steategy Ptk Advisaors (LR 111 1 IR
Partier’s cagntal acoosl e ewibide Ttom Cale-barieiss Wil St atedy Fand Advisors (LF {18
el lodong €T FEL Favnanine e Knputesl 2. 10048
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the fl 5t s {C d|
(Currency : Indlan rupees in millions)

Related Parties {Continued)

{1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year snded March 31, 2023
{Rs. i Millions)

Particulars Name of related parlies 202223 2021-22
Margn Payable to Eded Investments Limited 0.50 0.50
Margn Receivable Nuvama Clearing Services Lnnted 5.16
Ecap Equities Limited - 0.4%
Edel investments Limated 0.49 :
Trade receivables from Edel Finance Company Limied 217 $.72
ﬁdelweiss internatianal {Singapode) Pte Limwted 1318 1.79
l_Edellee Foundation 162 0.33
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limated 0.00 0.00
Edeal Investments Limited 2.30 187
Ecap Equaties Limited 291 0.9
Edelrap Securities Umited 1633 6.28
Edelwens Alternative Asset Adwisors Limed 25,11 609
Fdelweris Asset Management Limited 3a5 2.89
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 18.10 613
Edelwerit Financial Services Limited 21.20 30.06
ZUNO General Insurance Lunited {formerly known as Edelwens 444 B 56
General Insuiance Company Lvnited})
Edelweris Retail Finance Limiled 0.94 398
Edolweits Secorities And Investinessts Private Limited 8GO 517
Edelwens Tokio Life Wnsurance Company Limetad 10,54 714
Edelweris Mult Stieategy Fund Aduisors LLP 002 .01
ECL Finance Limated 3682 35.56
Edelweiss Global Wealth Managemant Limte 0.05
ECap Sequnties And Investments Limited 000
HNuvama Wealth and Investment Limited oo
Nuvama Clearning Seevices Lmited 007
Other Becewvable ECL Fmance Liniked 0.69 093
ZUNO Gengeral Insuramce Lumited [formetly kit b Pudelwesia ) (Hy 012
General Insusance Company Liemited)
tdelcap Secunties Linited 058
Fdel Investments Lunted 009
Lean Lapnlees Limwled 156,20 00}
Edel Finance Comprany Lutedl 002 Q06
Edelwiss Finang il Services Lismited 140
EdelGive Foundation 064 0.56
Ledelweriss Asset Management Lmited 00y
| dedweersss Asset Reconstruction Comgany L oo
Edelwriss Secunties And Investments Prvate Lunited 000
tdelwess Hetal baance Linvled 041 008
Securty Deposit Placed (Rental) 1-Cap Futies Linited 1168
Faelwaeiss Tokio Life Insueancs Company Lnrited 011
LCL Fanane e Linmiteed 14 00
Loans and advances geen (o Lelelwesss Alternative Avset Advisods Linutedd 12000 130 00
Foap Fquities Limited M) (R} ) 18
148 Securaies Aol Ivesstments Frvate Lomited 1,544 2,
mange Company Limited 521 2082 Ll
LCL Mwvance Lin 110 00
1 ddedwiisy Glabial Waalth M et Linwted F
Stack in radef Nifty Linked Do L Eaquities i AN j301)




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financlal statements [Continued)
{Currency - indian rupees In ®illons)

Related Partles (Continued)

{1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

fR= i Milla )

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Non converuible debentures Edelweiss Retail hinange Lamited 104§ 1861
Edel Finance Cawmpany Limsted 2494 18.07
Ecap Equitios Limited 955.97
Balantes with related parties as on 31 March 2023 - {Uabilites)
Subordinated Preference Shares Edel Fisance Company Limated 2000 918.36
JEcap Equities Limited 4% €8 1,296.51
Accrued interest expense on loans taken from ECL Finance Limited 087 0.24
Edel Investments Limited 183 129
Edel Firance Company Limited 797
Edelweiss Retal Finance Limited . 2236
Edelweiss Financtal Sedvices Limited 8329 244 11
Ecap Equities Limwed 474 121 89
Edelcap Secutities Lirnited 755
inlerast Payable-CCD Edel Finance Company Lemited 1790
Non converuible debentures held by Edel Invastments Limited . 300 87
Ecap Equities Limited 4,148.83 4,064.34
Edelcap Securities Linsted 1.369.00 350.51
|Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited S5 80 22580
_I-Nu_v.!m.l Wealth Finance Lmited B 016
ECL Finance Timited 831
Edelweiss Retal Finance Lumited K 747
LUNG Genedal Insurance Lunited {Tormerly known i Edelwers HIE
General Insurance Company Limied)
oo
Interest secrued bul not due on Non convertible debentures held by [Nuvama Wealth Finance himnted
Edelwerss Rutal Fruvance Lt [EF] [ FY]
fCL Fipance Limited 58
Fuelwriss Takio Life Insurgnge Company Lamted) L] (R
JUNO General bsarance Linnted flosmaedy kivowts as Fololwenss aaR
General Inwrance Comprany Limited)
ECap Lnintis Lritedd [
Interest Payalde on Debenture Eedel tnwestiments Lomited 04k
Ecap quities Limaed 11118 TG
Coelcagi Secunties Lnvitek 1763 4062
Henstal dopessts recened (roim Falelwaiss Avset Reconstroe ma Company Lmited 50 00 50 00
Ldefwaiss Allesmative Ascet Advisors Limited 1772
rade payaldes o Edelwerys Finandaal Services Linited [tHE} 4.88
FC Global limited o0z
LCL Fusanee Limled 30 6l 102 AG
Tdelwenss Aleriative Awel Advisars Pte Limited 014
Lddebwirass Asset Matagenenst Lt ol
Ldelcags Secunities bunited 021
Ladelwasing Asset Reconstroctom Conspany Linnged 041
Fdelwanss Tokwo Dile Insu Company Lamited 100)
FCap Sea i 011
Eadelweass, Altes ative Asset Adviors Dimrdod 150
Falelwervs Hetad Fatnand e Limites] 1) 28 (22
Nuvarin Wealth My Ltk 22
Feap Figuiturs bumed 40 2 Ky
Nuvama Waealth i Toyesd ™ Linwikedl 911
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the {i ial {Continued)
{Currency : Indlan rupees In millions)

Related Parties [Continued)

{)) Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Rs n Millions)

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-13 202122
Other Payabie Edelwedss Financial Services Limited 147 1.44
Edel Finance Company Limited 13.85 Q04
Edelweiss Assel Reconstruction Company Limied 087 000
Edeiweiss Retail Finance Litwted .46 0.00
EdelGive Foundation 0.24
Edelwerss Assel Management Limited 12,11
Edelweiss Alternative Assel Advisars Limited 0.87
Edel Investments Limited Q.79
ECL Finance Limited 0.01
Ecap Equities Limited 0.61
Sekura India Management Limited 0.01
ﬁd_elcap Secunties Limsted 0.01
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.15
Nuvama Cleanng Services Limited 0.15 0.10
Loans Laken from Edel Finance Company Limwled 1,671 50 o
Edel lnvestments Linited 685 00
Edelweiss Financial Services Limmted 5.689 0 9,339 23
tdelcap Secunues Limated 944 46
Ecap Equitivs Lumited 1,46(.19 1256
Edelweiss Relail Finance Limited . 3.470.00
OH balance sheet Item
Corporate guarantee given for ECL Finance Limited 149.30 249.09
tdel Finance Company Linuted 701 B8O 12655
Edelweiss Retal Fingnce tuniteud 1249
Corporate guarantee taken from Ededwesss Financial Serwces Limited 4,200 94 1.324 40
Ecap Cquikies Lemited 1,012.64 280 22
Risk and Rewards shanng arrangement Edlewesss Fiandial Semvice s Liondel 1LHA0 78 2. 708 60

000 abees amounts less than Rs Q.01 nilhiom




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financial Statements (continued)
{Currency ; Indian rupees in millions)

42 Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements:
42.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) Taxation matters in respect of which appeal s pend ng Rs 257 15 million (Previous year R 418,52 million)

b
) Corporate guarantee given by the Group to bank for Rs 917 05 mullion (Previous year R 1,324.42 milhon) for availing Fund ba od

Banking facihties by its subsid ary Company N do Home Finan e 1m ted (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance L mt d)

c}
The Group has g ven composite corporate guarantee to bank for Rs 585.50 million (Previous year. Rs 569.98 m on} for availing

fund based Banking facilities by ts subsidiary/fellow Subsidiary Companie i.e Mido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited}, ECL Finance Limited and Edelweis Reta’l Finance Limited.

With reference Deed of Guarantee agreement between the Company and the Lender the liability of the Company 1s lower of value
of mmovable properties of the Company or outstanding respe tive faci ities of the respect ve Group Companies The charge created
on immovable propert es of the Company amount ng to Rs 585 S0m’l ‘'on as at Mar h 31, 2023 {Previous Year Rs 569.98 million)

d) The Group has gwen guarantee of Rs 701 80 mil 1on {Prev ou year R 726.55 million on behalf of Edel Finance Company Limited
{'EFCL'}),a holding company, which has sod certain f nangial asset to Ede waiss Asset Reconstruction Company L mited ("EARC'),
ancther group company The terms of ale requred a y Ede weiss group company to prowide EARC with un onditional and
irrevocable guarantee for secur ng the guaranteed obl gat on of EFC .

e) The Company has provided Corporate Guarantee to VISTRA ITCL { nd’a} Limited for borrowings from BPEA Credit India Fund I
(‘Barings’} amounting to Rs 3,290 60 m llion (Previous year Rs Nil milon) on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary Edelweiss
Investment Advisors Ltd (EIAL} n respect of cred tfa |t es obtaned by E AL,

f)y Undrawn Commitments for AIF funds R 384 95 mu hon (Previous Year: R . 4,743.14 m1 on)

g} Durning the year ended 31 March 2023, certain assets amount ng to Rs. Nil million (Previous year Rs 1284 40 million) were  d t
alternative assets funds by the fellow sub dary NBF s The Group has, vide a put agreement dated 31 July 2021, has guar nteed
undertaken to purchase these f nancial assets amounting to Rs 1284 40 million on oc urrence of certain trigger event s per the
agreement

hy Utigation pending aga nst Group amount to Rs 1 7 30 mullion as at 31 March 2023 {Previous Year Rs 17790 m | onjon u tof
ammended value proposed by regulation authority in the ca ¢ of DB Trusteeship Ltd v/s O nate Spaces td

D The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a he ghtened e ement of bgato ¢ sk nherentin ts
operation As a result, the company s involved in var ous it gation, arb tration and regulatory proceeding n the ordinary course of
it's business The company has formal controls and policies for managing lega cla ms Based on profes jona legal adv se, the
company had several unresolved legal cla ms however individually any of the cla m 1s not mater a  The aggregate va ue of ¢lum
against the company s Rs Nil million {Previous Year 85 2 54 million}

i) Undrawn Commmtted credit hnes subject lo meetg of condit ons, Rs 336 00 mulhon {Provious Year Rs 2879 milhon) a #t the
balance sheet date

k} Capital Commutments  Estimated amount of contract remaming to be executed of capital o count and not provided for R 19
million {Previous Year Rs 10 52 million)

1) The Group has has provided bank gurantess imouting to R 319 23 Million {Previous Year 319 23 mallion }
The group has Lean sanctioned and pending disbursement of Ry 1,399 92 mill on {Previous Year Rs 8719 o o)

The Group's pending litigat ons mamly compr se of dda ms against Group pertainir g W proces dings pondn g with noeme Tax, Ok se
Custom, Sales/VAT tax / GST and other authonties The Group bas reviewed all its pend) g lingations ind prec edings ind b
adequately prowded for where provisions are required and disclosed oy contingent Iobr te where app bl notb frarcwl
statements The amaount of provisions £ contingent habilities s Loased onmanagen ent s estiovate ind ac sigo fiont habibty s oxpected )
anse out of the same

The Group has receved demand not cos from tax authontic or sceount of d sallowince of  xpenditur ~ for co e exerr stn gm
under Section LA of Income Fix Act 1961 read with Rale 812 of the ncomes Tax Ruldes, 19C2 The Grovg Fa el appedl ad g,
defending its position Based on the favouraly ¢ out onke m Appellote procoed ng i the past s s advised by U taxor v sor Geoug o
reasonably corlain about sustaining its pesit on o the per ding cases hence the possilal ty of ot ow ol teso ey embodyin g oo wome
Iemefity on this ground « remote
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Edelweis

Notes to th

s Rural & Corporate Services Limited

e Consolidated financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
43 Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Particulars Amount
Impairment allowance as on 01-Apr-21 437.84
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired (net) (44.87)
Impairment allowance as on 31-Mar-22 392.97
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired {net}) {24.65)
Impairment allowance as on 31-Mar-23 368.32

44 Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Group:

a

b

C

d

e

g

h)

Pk \
A\
/ %\T'
i/

il f 1
({71 mgwmBAl |

|II.I (%
'|I. ._ V'\.

£
Yo

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 59.24 millions (Previous year: Rs. 57.15 millions} have been pledged with banks for obtaining the
bank guarantee provided to VAT authorities for meeting statutory requirements

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 6.60 millions {Previous year: Rs. 16.50 millions) have been pledged with bank for obtaining the
bank guarantee provided to Customs authorities for meeting statutory requirements

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 13.09 millions {Previous year: Rs. 14.31 milhons) have been pledged with bank for obtaining the
bank guarantee provided to various mandis for margin and license requirements

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 322.53 millions {Previous year: Rs. 322.83 millions} have been pledged with banks for securing bank
Guarantee.

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 1180.12 millions {Previous year: Rs. 910.76 millions) have been pledged with banks for letter of
credit and secrutisation.

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. Nil millions {Previous year: Rs. 1,117.00 millions) have beren pledged with banks for securing Bank
Overdraft

Bank Balance aggregating to Rs. 28 73 million (Previous year: R 665 48 million) have been held in Escrow account is charged against

debt secunities
Bank Balance aggregating to Rs. 4 million (Previous year: Rs. 4 million) have been pledged with exchanges for meeting base capital

requirement

801 5.
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financial Statements {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitllans)

s

45 Earnings per share (EPS}

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holder: by the weighted average number

of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders {after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares
and interest on the convertible bend, in each case, net of tax) by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equily shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potenual ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

In accordance with Indlan Accounting Standard 33 - "Earnings Per Share" prescribed by Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2015, the computation

of earnings per share is set out below:

2022-23 2021-22
Profit /{loss) for the year {2.529.86) {1,536.37)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculoting basic TP
Number of shitres autstanding at the beginming of the year 72,285.32) 39,775,367
Number of Shares issucid during the year 6,760,000
Compulsory Converiible Debenture and Preference share 25,749,955
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 72285322 72.285.122
Werghted average numboer of equity shares for calculating Bawi: EPS 72285322 65,562,363
Number of dilutive potential equity shares -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calcutating diluted TP§ 11280317 65,562,363
Earmings per share (EP5) (Face value Re.1 cach)
Basic canngs share [in Rs) {35.00} {23413)
Dhlutive carming per share Hin Ksb {35 Q0) {23.43)
The wanghted average numbes of shates takes mte acceumt 25 299955 eguity shares to be converlesd on ssuane of compubsonly convestdile

debentures ("CCO7L & compubaarily convertible preference shuaes {"CCIS™)

g




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financial Statements {continued)
[Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

46 Leases:-

1} This note provides information for Right of use assets where the Group is a leszee. Group has not given any property on lease
Carrying amounts of right-of-use As at As at
assets recognised and the movements | March 31, 2623 | March 31, 2022
Opening balance as at 114.44 104.64
Addition / disposal during year 45.71
Lease pre-closure {7.71) (5.31)
Depriciation/Amortisation for the year (30.97) (30.60)
Closing balance as at 75.76 114.44

2) This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

Carrying amounts of lease liabilities As at As at

and the movements March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Dpening balance as at 142.39 13995
Addition / disposal during year 31.15% 35.84
Accretion of interest 12,58 13.19
Lease pre-closure {14.45) (9.71}
Lease payment for the year {37.43) {36.88}
Closing balance as at 134.24 14239

3) The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leascs
Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22
Depreciation on ROU of assets 30.97 30.60
Reversal of lease pre-closure (6.74) (4.40)
Interest cost 12.58 13.19
Expenses related to short term lease
Total amount recognised in statement
of profit and loss 36.81 39.39

4) This note provides information for Total cash Cutflow for Leases
Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22
Cash outflow of long term leases 37.69 37.28
Cash outflow of short term leases 1.95 0.55
Total 39.64 17.83

5) This note provide details regarding the contractual maturitivs of lease liabilties, oo an undiscounted basis
Particular As at As at

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 38 36 40.03
1-3 years 06 29 70.47
3-b years 28 .96 H4.14
More than 5 years 263 EW
Total 136.24 170.31
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financlal Statements {continued)
|Currency : Indlan rupees In mlllions)

47 Retirement benefit plan

f)

A

8}

ML Ar AL

Defined contribution plan [Provident fund and National Pension Scheme):

Amount of Rs 47 93 milbon (Previous year Rs 46.17 milhon) recognised 3 cxpense and inc uded n Employee benelit expense’ in the statement of profit and
loss

Defined benefit plan {Gratulty):

The lollowing tables summanse the components of the net beneht expenses rec gnsed nthe latement fpr ftand ss e lunded and unfunded status and
amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefu plat

Statement of profit and loss

-\ B0/
A

Exp recognised in the S of Profit and Loss:

2022-23 2021-21
[Current service cost 1223 10 97
Interest on defined benefit obligation 03 (0 26
Expected return on plan asset -
Past serwice cost
Actunal (gain] or loss recogmized in the year
Exchange cale adpstment -
Total included in ‘Employee benefits expense’ 12.58 10.71
Movement In Other Comprehensive Income:

2022-23 2021 22
Balance at start of year {Loss)/ Gan 3 3m 6 a7
a2 Actuanal {l oss) Gam from changes in iinapoal assumption 171 2 46
h Actuanal [Loss)/ Gan from expenence aver the past yead {140 {2 8)
¢ Actuarial {Loss)/ Gan from changes in demographic assumpt iy 114 {340
Return on plan assets excluding amgunt included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liabilityf (asset) {26 Z G4
Changes in the cffect of imibing a net defined benelit asset tethe 3 o ciling
extluding amount mncluded v net interest on the net defined benelit ab ity
[asset) {3 25} {26 54
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Galn 35.70} {34 30}
Balance sheet
Reconclllation of defined benelit obll ation DBO :

2022-23 2021 72
Present value of DBO at the begmning of the year 4 de G2 24
Acquision/ [[veshiture) 5
Teaiwsler in f {Owt) {184 {s 2
Interest cost 47 4 M
Current service cosl [F R 10 »
Benehits paud {(1rgy 2> 44
Past service cost
Actuanal (gain)fluss {444 384
Exchange Rate Adjustment
Present value of DBO at the end of the ear 71.86 74 a6
Reconciliation of falr value of  lan ayots:

2022 23 2021 21
Farr walue of plan assets at the beginning of the year [T s
Acquisition [ {Iwvostiture} L
Contntons by Lmployes 1411 | Y
Benehies poud 128 1
Invterasst wve o b a1
Returo an plan st exchoding ainomst wicgdedm net ettt g the oet
defined Bertoht Habdiny/ assot) oo} 201
Falr value of lam assets ot the end of the ear 109 38 105 76

b
tco
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conaslidated Financfal Statements (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millizns}

47 Retirement benefit plan (Continued)

8]

Defined benefit plan (Gratulty} {Continued):

Net asset / ({labllity) recognised in the balance sheet:

2022-23 2021-22
Present value of Defined Penfelit Obligation 71.86 71 46
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the
year 109,38 105.76
Net Llability 137.52) {31.30)
Loss Elfect of Bmiting net assets 1o asset
ceiling 44 65 ¥ 1n
Liabllity r ised In the balance sheet 7.14 7.81
Experience adjustments:

2022-23 2021-22
On plan liabiles: loss / {gain) 1.40 2329
On plan assets: gain / {loss) . 0
Estimated contnbution for next year
Printlpal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

202223 2021-22
Discount rate 5.90%| 5 90%
Salary escalation 1% 5
Emplayees attrition rate 16% lem
Expected returm on plan asset 5.00% 5.00%

Lyeass)

Mortahty Rate IALM 2012-14 (Ultimate]]  TALM 2012-14 [Uhimate)
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets 2022-23 021-22
Investment Funds with Insurance Company and Cash 96 00% 96.000%
Cash and cash equivalents 4.00% .00
Total 100 00% 100%
Sensitlvity Analysis for 2022

DBO increases [ [decreases) by 2022-13 2021.22
Increase ol 1% in Salary Grawth Rate 262 182
Decrease ul 1% 0 Salary Groweh Rate {?53) {151
Increase ol 1% in Discount Rate {2 41) {3 %)
Decrease of 1% w Discount Ratle 204 3g
Ingrease ol 1% in Attntion Rate uot {0 19
Decrease of 1% n Altrition Rate {001} 1 94)
Mortabty (Increase in capectad iletune by 1

yea) o ?
Maortality {Incrirase in cepected Meume by 3 A

Employee Stock Option Plans

The Holding Company [Edelwerss Financial Services bamted (EFSLIY hoas Engoyee Stock Cplion Plas and  Stack Approciotion Rights Plans {SAR) in
force. Based on such ESOP/SAR schemes, parent enbity has granted an ESOPSSAR oplan to acguire equity shares of EFSL thal would vost in g graded
mannes to Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the doer value of such siock aptions, Company has aeoepted

such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee (ost Corent year charge al B 5 23 amthors (previous year release ol R 13 36

mullions)




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

49

Cost sharing and other recoveries
Cost Sharing:

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. being the Ultimate Holding Company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like common senior management
compensation cost, Group Mediclaim,etc which is for the common benefit of itsell and its certain subsidianes including the Group. This cost s¢ expensed is
reimbursed by the Group on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other compames, actual entifications et¢ On the same lines, costs like
rent, electricity charges incurred by the Group for the benefit of Fellow subsidiaries and associate companies are recovered as reimbursement by the Company from
the subsidiaries and associate companies on similar basis. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 36 and 39 include
reimbursements paid and are net of the reimbursements reccived based on the management’s best estimate

As per the master service agreement, The Group provides necessary supporl for activities relating 1o information technalogy, human resource, administrative, finance
and operations related services to holding company, subuidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and aisociate companies. The income in note 3] as Business supporl services
ncome relates to amount recavered from these entities far the said services.

Cther recoveres:

The income (in note 33 relates to amount recovered lram the ultimate holding Company, subidianes, fellow subssdiaries, lor acrupying office promises in the Groip's

building.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financial Statements (continued}
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

50

51

Detalls of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise:

Trade Payables includes Rs.8.46 million (Prewious year: R:i. 7 26 milion) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / s payable by the Group during the year to "Suppliers” registered under this act
The afore mentioned is based on the responses received by the Group Lo its inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said agt,

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act ,2006

Asat March 31,]  As at March 21,
2023 2022
The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at end of accounting
year
Principal amount due to micro and small enlerprises B.AG 1.26
Interest due on above
Total 8.46 7.26
The amount of interest paid by the Buyer in terms of soction 16 of the MSMLD Act 2006 along with amounts
of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appainted day duning each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of debay i making payment (which bave been pand
but beyond the appoated day during the year) but without adding the mtersst specified under the MSMED -
Act 2006
The amount ol mterest accrued and remaing unpaid af the end of each accounting yea
The amount of further interest remamnimg due and payable evenn the succveding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small eaterpose for the puipose ol afsalisomce as -
a deductible expenditure under saction 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
Corporate social responsibility (CSR}:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013,
i} Gross amount required Lo be spent by the Group durning the year was Rs. § 72 millions (Fimancial Year 2122 Bs, 1053 milions)
it} Amount spent during the year on
Particulars tn cash fetiobelpaidin Total
cash

Constructions / acquisition of any assets - -
On purpose other than (i) above G FX 5.72

i) Shorfall at the end of the year was Rs. Nil millian (Previous Year Mil million)

w) Total of previows years shorlall was Rs. Nil million {Prewvious Year 8l million)
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Notes to Canoslidated Fi 1ai N P
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Risk Management framework
Governance framewaork

The pimary  bjectwe of the Group's sk and hnanc al management frame of 410 profeqt the up s shureh  der from events that hieder the sustamable achievement of
objectves,  luding {aling to exploit opportunities Key management e gnises hecr b alimports te [hav g el ient and effe tive ok Mmanagement systems m p ace

Approach to capital management
P ehjectives when managing capital, arc to (a} mamimise shav b de volucandp v le nefidst other takeh lde s and mantar an optumal capita st glure to od th vt fan

he purposes of the Groups & apital management  apital ik udes  sued capial  hare premwsm and Hl thes equiy re erves iitr wiable tothe eg ty  Ider

“roup monitors capital using debt equity tahio, which s (otal debt divided by 1010 equity

[Pacticutar As at 315t March 2023| A5 at 31st March 2022
Total Debt 45,500.10 59, BO.I0|
'Equuy 2 981 69| 4921 14
[Reet Oebt to Equity 15 26} 12 00|

Credis Risk
Credit fisk anses when 3 Customer of Counterparty dowd not meet ts oblytatior s under o ustomedr antract ¢f 0 abin tr
14 operating act vities prumanly trade rece vables and hinang ol Instiuments

ingtoah ar ol wGrgwp  wx ed b credirsh !

Th G up’s management pobcy 15 10 closely momitor reditworthine  of conlerpatie by ronewnig ther re it rsting hnanos Matement 1 regular basis

Th G upshnandal assets ubgect to the expected redt o s mode wit nlad AS 1 }are Lo mitrade  d other recewnble an i anc  instruments Group apphes the eapacted dedil o

n e orrecogiiwng mpaninent Joss Expected ceditlos alowance  respect of recevable omputed basved vapr v o matnie which tikes inlo ac ount histore 3 redit capenence
Group s exposed o redt sk amutyal fund investment |, however th ¢ v He ot ubyeded to W AS 109 mphirment 140wt s s Hhey an nedsunnd ot FVTRL The ca yiig valee of
st nuestments  der I AS 109 reprosent the group  massmis xpos 1ok uhean L1 3 Teuments not sabject To The In AS LFLIMpaim w8 roquiteineats 1the Fe g g

repor g date sy

Twentected redd ss 3 wodu tof exposure atdefault prot abuity uf default ind lgys gven default The Group las devned an termaling el D evahate the pre balbbly fdebin £ and lass goven
au based nthe porameters set v ind AS Ac an

gy the hinand al nstroments ar o arkn var gt S6ages 95 Tollow

I rn 2 Ing grade Internal grading desceipilon 5 ages
[ ]
High grade Odpd and 1 to 30 d d 5t
Starfa  grade 31 to 90 dpcd S g
e _orming
ldivad, lly impaired W dpd 51 ge

dpr ik ates days §asl due

tu whflow toa 1 " w ot meooa bl awsk Fowe that e ity g ¥ W
¢ Iw . d ow [} oberome Y days past due £ sslicatun oy et o

B au " . waere gmlcant mere e n orodin 1ok Fas b

a [118Y (51 At ' the Grp ol onwleerd wowa ety af st o th tway

e (X7 . r 1 1 Woas febadlt o bk theretore a sessed s Yage 19
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financial Statements [continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in mil ions)

53  Risk Manag Wt fr k {Continued)
A)  Collateral held and other credit enhancements

| The tables on the fol wng page sh wt ax

um expasure to credit r sk by class of financial asset

Maximurn expasure to credit risk as at 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 | Principal type of collateral

Financial assets

Loans:

Retail Loans and Who e ale a 31,849.01 3,295 2 | Property, book
Recewvables
Diversified pool of Real
Estate Proyects, Lond,
Bank bolance

Trade recevables 38088 226 48

Debt instruments and  ther tment t m rtised cost 7,688.47 ,510 46 | No Colloterat

Other Financial Asset 1,441 16 754 10 | No Coflateral

Total financial assets at amortised cost 41,359.52 49 786.29

Derivative financial nstruments - 1716

Loans at FVTPL 2,219.22 .361 82 | No Collater

Financial assets at FVTPL 6,522.09 ,876 19 | No Colfate

Financial assets at FVTPL Steck in trade 2.546.66 ,257 Bl
No Collate o

Total financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 11,287.97 12 512.98

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI -

Total debt instruments at fair value through OC) -

Total Financial assets 52,647.48 62,299.27

Loan commilments 1,399 92 87190 | Properly book
Recemwables

Financial guarantee co tr ct 386.99 2 62095 | No Colleteral

Other commitments (max exposure} 1,786.91 3,492.85

Total 54,434.39 65,792.12

[} Financial assets that arc stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potentlal lasses are glven below:

31-Mar 23

Financlal assets
Loans

Total financial assets
at amortised cost

Finuncial guarantee contracty

Total

31 Mar 22

Financlal assets
Loany

Total financlal assets
at amortlsed cost

Fmancial guarantee contradts

Total

\NBOTE

R
QJ\)‘ ‘:)\" \
/ T A\ \
3 ﬂUMWﬁ‘)*
. .
\'

~

+

.

Maxlmum exposure to
credit risk {carrying
amount before ECL

B, 186 10

8,186.10
346 99
8,573.09
Maximum enposure to
credit risk {carrying
amount balore ECL
111842
3,728 42

20

6,349 37

Associated ECL

f6/532

7.675.32

7.675 32

Assoclated ECL

20621

2,676 23

o)

2,676 31

Carrylng
amount

S10 /8

510.78
38699

897.77

Carrylng
amaunt

LUs2 20

1 522
Al

3673 ¢

Falr value of collateral

84

805 52

3H¢

1,192 51

Fair value of collateral

1 0th

3006 12
L

5,626 98




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to Conoslidated Financial Statements {continued)

(Currency - Indian rupees in m flions)

53 Risk Management framework [Continued)

B} Analysis of risk concentration

The Group's concentration of risk are managed by chent/counterparty and sector
The following tabke shows the nsk concentrated by industry for the components of the balance sheet

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2023

Particulars Financial services Retail and whalesale Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent
and other bank balances 3,727 54 3,727 4
Derivative financial
instruments
Investment 14,388.57 14,388.57
Stock in trade 2,546 66 2 546 66
Trade and other
receivables 380 88 380 88
Loans 3,695 15 30,373 09 34,068 24
Other Financial Assets 1,249 08 192 07 1,441 15
Total 25,987.88 30,565.16 56,553.04
Other Commitments 38699 1,399 92 1,786 91
Total 26,374.87 31,965.08 58,339.95
Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2022
Particulars Financial services Retail and wholesale Total
F nanc a assets
Cash and cash equivalent
and other bank balances 6,227 17 6,227 17
Derivative financial
mstruments 17 16 171
Inyestment 16 386G 64 16,3 6.64
Stock in trade 225781 22 781
Trade and other
recevables 226 48 226.48
Loans 972022 32,937.18 42,657 40
Other Financial Assets G618 52 135.54 754 06
Total 35,454.00 33,072.72 68,526.72
Gther Commitmoents 4,743 17 87191 > 61508
Total 40,197.17 33,944.63 74,141 80




Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to C ldated Fi 1al Stat 15 (s Inwed)
e y Indian rupees in million

55 Rish 1 k {Continued)

0}  Liguidity risk and funding management
Iquidiy sk o defined as the nsk that the powe | o counter gif ul y o meeting b gatians aysouated with foan ol hatrbtes that e seliled by delivecig cash or anathor Bnansal sssey
Exposure o hguidity nsk arises beqause of
NP sibr 1y that the Group could be required to pay it (rade payable »  ber than enpected
Mmal h nmdtunty piolle of 3s3ets and b hitie
mDetay  receipt of recewables including age  yre ev e

The Giou policy & to valiky redemprion spque ty by the Tollowing  eae  [in decraasing order of pnor yh
W thdr  al of cash depasits

WDispos | of highly aud J3sets fi e short-ter | low-rish delt nvest  enty, inventory]

MjEither  spotal gf other assets orincreas | veorage

The Grou asohasu d awn borrowng fac moguning 10 R ong as an 31 Mareh 2023435 on 31 Mar h 2022 Ry 70 mulhgns)

3.0.1. Anatysis of financhal assets and finan lal Rabilitles by remalning cantractual maturities
The table bolow sum 1 I urity 1 ol the indis t 1 shflows 1 the Group's nen denvatives fisangal et ey Repayment  which are subt 10 notce e Weateo s of aptice
wer 1o cgivenimm a1 v H ow over th ypcxp  4thatth cipartie will not roguist sepayment on The carhesl dalis il could be reguined 1o pay

Anabysis of non-derivative 1l ancial labilities by rémalning ¢antractual malurities

As at 31-Mar-24

[Won-derivalive Tivancial ab e Tpte Batween Befween b U tween Wiare Than Totr T
3 months 3 to b monthy monihg to 1 yoar 1ye rt §year 3 yeary

Teade payahles T M [LEEE]
Rertowengi {othod th n debl s cunt 1} 2,116 44 4504 14 4636 74 7.6 U9 153178 L6 00
Debl tecutitie s 1,957 140 1BT DO 1119 68 208 50 1304ras 2 o0 A1
Subordmated hnancial kil s 42710 56 I 6 50 LIS RS
Cthver tinancrl abiitiey 1IN HS EEEY] 1.0J0 D& 36 S 5./3958 NEINT
Totsl d d Binancial iabilities 6.247.20 5.799.77 683211 165 14 20.310.79

Analysis o non-derivathve i ancla assets by remalning coniractual maturities

[Han-dervalive imantial 235eli Upta ¥ Beliwer JT B Helw T tha TFT
manihs & month montng Lo L year Lyeart Sywar 3 y#ary
Coshiand cash cquwal ¢ andot ¢ Bank ot 2.279 44 I 1042 96 HS BT 3197 oy
Stock wn-racdle 24511 14u 141 2ot HE a6 Gy
Trade recervables JHO B 180 84
1pam FRd 194 48 A, bR LADS 4L FERIH T 5
Investimonts XI5 TR 23244 1501 44 V326 b1 T R 5H |
Hhes linancal asaety A6 51 1400 502 [EIXY] RO/ 14 R
Total und: d fi hal aviets 15.048.69 1,089 .41 5,602 .43 2021279 18.303.03 .5
Az at 11-Mar-32
HNon-derivative linancis) liab itles Ugto Belwesn Bolwre Belween Mora than Tatal
I manthi lwé onl 4 month to ¥y 1yea to Iyoars Iyears
Trade payatiley 2 Al [IERE
ilortowin s{ather1 ndebtiec 1 1) 46RA 1) 5l LR ET N Y I, 1%8 50 560 11 11,8545}
Dehl sequnlicy ERES R ] 194 0 4077 6 Loa% )2 101905 LBA0] A
Subordinated hna o habibuiesy 2 21Hp 1y 112 50 6l 0 LS 1y
O her inangiablie - ey 1,342 12 wrm BOEOH 55404 ' 4600 14 BHTIHS
Vundiscounted non-dedvative Hnancla liabitiiley 15,407. 4 1,444.60 17,017 84 19,881 0% 18,7192 06 ST
I #s of non-derivative financhal 2114t by remalning conliractual maturithes
n-detivarive finan ol svialy Upto ¥ Belwee Jlo Gotween Belween Mose than Tauwul
month 6 month monthsto i car 1yeario} 1years
hand coshege ¥ ot and ather bank balaners LAY V" IR iy R UNIIAE |
K wrrale iz Al m 7 Hn e 4 2R
die receivables YU HHs 1 #n J I 1]
m AL oM XL FAP IR rradoora FERU.RE] [BNETY Y
ummaty (TR " at [FRPLR] HAITH R [E0NTYRN
[l I LIl aety W0 [P A 11080 N m
1undiicounted non-derlvative financ 2 aviaty 9. 78 215100 851013 3401018 12,405.23 A7.036.18
sethann the siee s samds o st Belyey b U Comigsar wlt Bes b 8o pray oty obltations s e whion e Deeomes due i e neclonme yies Managemsest
sesumeniy of v ey e Haded tovveres Fram sabe oF iy mvesting W, sches el recovey 2 EHOID 1 by £ litiss, eaper e hotdnwing ant Babude ook s that wall by

1 Ane Haared ol Dir

weated iinay ot The A o W represents that il well (ondl Ly AL apspeont tup tl

buguneliby, aswrt ol narkag o Lof the Conpany aand Bl the Lenngrany ] e bl 10

Ana yibs of di I ncial Nabid by tontraciual malurltios

Avat 3l Mar 3

Drrhvslive Finan lal assels LI LITE (Y Hetweren dln s Hetween omonthon 1la (IR
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nal
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Edclweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consol dated financial statements {Continued)
(Cuttency Indian tupe millions)

53 Risk Management framewaork (Cont nued)
E Market risk
Market risk is the risk which can aifect the Group s n eme or the value of 1t

nterest rates, equity prces foreign exchange rate and credit sproads The
within acceptable parameters

Iding of hinancial instruments duc to adverse movements in market pr ces of snstrument due 1o
" clve of the Group's market nsk management is te manage and cantro mar ket risk exposures

m rket o
ge ach I

Market the risk that the fair value gr future ashf ws of financis w truments will fluctuate due 1o change
equ ty prices Group classifies exposures to market 15k into esther trading or non trading portfolios and ma

bles such gy interest rates, foresgn exchange rates and
ose portfolios separately

{1} interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future  ash flows of the Lar value  of hnancial instruments The Company 1s not expused to
interest rate risk as it doos not trade in Interest Rate Derivatves and does n  have any Joan  hav ng var able intere trates,

The iollowing table demonstraltes the sensitraty 10 a reasonably possible change in nterest rate {al othe var ahle be ng constant) aof the Group's statemernt of proft and loss

and equity

Currency of borrowlng /

2022 23

Increase in basis points

Effect on profit before

Decrease in basis

advances EHect on Equity Effect on profit Effect an Equity
tax peints befare tax

INR Louns 301 0425 [30.71)

[INR Borrowing {51 85} 015 | 51.85

2021 22

Currency of borrowin,
¥ %/ Increase nbas s points

Effect on profit before

Effect on Equity

Decrease in basls

Effect on prodit Effest on Equity

[pavances tax points belore tax
INR Loans E] 692 0.25 {30.92)
IINR Borrowing 5 (15 ¢} 025 1501

{1 Currency risk

€ rroncy risk 1s th . nisk that the value of 3 inancal instrument will fluctuate due o chnge

€ frency borrow RS-

T e tahbe below 1 dicates the curreacies to winch the Graoup had significant exposare at the end o he repocied pee
movement of the currency rate against the INR (ol other vanables beng constant} on the statement of prof tand lo

nlore

hange rates Foreign currency risk anse majorly on account of fareign

Iy The analysis colculates the eftect of areasonably possbste
duie tor the fair volue of custency sensibve non trading

mon elacy assets and | alities) and equity {due to the change i L vatoe of cyrrency swap  and forwar | inngn exchange contracts used as Cash flow hedpes)

Increase in currency rate (%)

Increase ncurrency rate (%K)

.
il

{iil} EquMy price risk

Eqquitty pesc.es 1ok s thie rsk that the Bair valoe ot it re cash thw

prICes

Impact on

ncraase n equ ty price %)

Deriviive
Miitual I

Impact on

Increase In equity price (%)

D ivatives
Mutual Tnwds

~,
-y

>,

Yo N
)
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‘ 1

EHect on profit before

tan

Effect on profit belore
tax

Baovaatna bl inastenn

Effect on prafit before
tax

Elfect on profit bofore
tax

2022 23

Effect on Equ ty

2021 22

Efect on Equily

022 23

201 12

Eltect on Equity

Decrease ncurrency EMect on prof t

rate |

before tax Effect on Equity

Decrease In currency  Effect on profit

rate

1 wall Pl B Bne anrser of ebhanges m the bewel oow

Decrease nequity

rice

Dacroase In equity
price| )

before tax Effect on Equ ty

i Wl Investinent i ety share

Etfect on proflt

holore tax Effect un Equity

5 HH)

Effoct on protit

T 11
bolore tax nct on Equity
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indizn rupees in milllons)

53

[ Market risk {continued)

fiv} tndex price risk

Risk Management framework (Continued)

Index price risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash llows of a financial instrument will lluctuate because of changes in the level of equily indices

202223
Impact on Etfect on profit before Decrease In index Etfect on profit
N in ind lee (%) Effect on Equit:
el AL R G tax — price {%} before tax ety
Derivalives 5 E
Security held for trading 5 5 BR S | -5.88
2021-22
Impatt on Effect on profit before i Decrease inindex Effect on profit
| in Ind ice (%] Effect on Equit i
nerease bn index price (%) . ect on Equity price (%) lbefore tax Effect on Equity
Derivatives 5 5 :
Security held for trading 5 {0 KO} 5 0.60

[iv) Other price rksk

Other price risk vk the nisk that the far value or future cash Flows of a financl mstrument wall Hluctuate because of changes in the level of markel prices other than equity and

index prices.
2022-23
I t
. Increase in price (%) LWL Effect an Equity Decrease in price (%) PLSHELCIEL Effect on Equity
tax before tax
Loans Clssihed at FVTPL k] 1108 ] (110.96)
Security held lor trading L] 112.5%% % {112.55)

2021-22

Impacton tect fit bet Effect lit
. increase bn price {%} BuICET etare EHect on Equity IDecrease Iy price (%) ect on pro Effect on Equity
tan befare tax
Loans Clssified a8 FYTPL, 5 168.09 3 {168.09)
Security held for traching 5 121.18 5 12118}
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financia statements [Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions})

54 Fair Value Measurement
A} valuation Principles :
Farvalueisthepr ethatw uvdber v dt elanassetorpad totransfer a hability n an orderly transaction in the principal (or
ssets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

The following table show n | is ffinancial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair

Particulars 31-Mar-23

Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments [assets)

Exchange trad dde vatv

OTC derivatives

Embedded derivat ve ark t nkedd be t e [
Total derivative financial instruments (assets)

Stock-in-trade

Government Secur tie

secur ties he d for trad g -
Debt Secuntie 2,422.89
Mutua Fund -
Equity nstrum ts

Nifty L nked Debent - 123 76 123.76
Preference Shares

Stock-in-trade 1,993.55 2,546.65

Investments
Government securities
Debt secunties
Mutual fund uruts

Units of AIF

Warrants

Equity instruments 1 00 1.00
Investments in Funds

Secunity receipls 2,245 67 2,245 67
Investment in Tech fund

India Credit Investment Fun | 261179 261179
India Credit Investment Fun 1,055 49 1,055 49
Total investments measured at fair value 5,913.95 6,041 29
Loans and other financial assets measured at fair value 2,645.10 2,645 10
Property Plant and equipment

Land and Building 2,024.51 2,024 51
Total financlal assets measured at fair value on a recur 12,577.11 13,257 55
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Particulars

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments {assets)
Exchange-traded derivatives

OTC derivatives

Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures issui

31 Mar 22
Level 2 Level 3

Total derivative financial instruments {assets)

Stock-in-trade
Government Securities

se ur ties held for trading 1,632.82
Debt Securities 620.70
Mutual Fund

Equity Instrurments

Nifty Linked Debentures 429 4.29
Preference Shares

Stock-in trade 1,306.15 2,257.81
Investments

Government securities

Debt securities

Mutual fund units

Units of AlF

Warrants

Equity instruments 100 100
Investments in Funds 314.09 314.09
Se urity receipts 2,702 98 2,702 98
Investment in Tech fund 199.80 199.80
India Crednt Investment Fund Il 1,511 33 1,511 33
India Credit Investment Fund | 2147 00 2,147 00
Total investments measured at fair value 6,876.19 6,876.19
Loans and other financial assets measured at fair value 3,361.82 3,361.82
Property Plant and equipment

Land and Building 2,205.58 2,205 58
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recur 13,749 73 14,718.55
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements [Continued}
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy {Continued)

Particulars 31-Mar-23
Level 2 Level 3

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments (liabihties)
Exchange-traded derivatives

OTC derivatives

Embedded derivative liabilities in market hnked debentt
Non convertible debentures issued

Short sales

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a res

Assets and liabilities b falr value hierarch {Continued

Particulars 31 Mar 22
Level 2 Level 3

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basls

Derivative fn nc a instruments ( ab it es}

Exchange traded denivat ves

OTC dervativ

Embedded der vat've habul it 1n market | nked debent

Non convertibe b tures) sued

Short sa es

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a re




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements {Continued}
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

54 Fair Value Measurement {continued)

¢} Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial nstrument not measured at fair va ue and analysing them by the leve *  the fair
value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categor ed The informat on g ven below is with respect to financral  ssets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost for which the fa r value is different than the arry ng amount, Carrying amount  f cash and

cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and other payable as on 31 March 2023 approximate the fair value because of thew  hort term
nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fa r va ue of bank depos ts other f nanc als assets and other financial liabid ties s not
significant in each of the years presented

31 March 2023
Total Carrying
Particulars Amount Total fair value Level 1 lLevel 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans 31,423 13 31,862 75 31,8627
Investments at amortised cost
Other financial assets
Total 31,423.13 31,862.75 - 31,862.75
Financdial liabilities
Borrowings 36,431 13 EXFITER 37,210 11
Trade Payables 387 BO 387 80 387 80
Other financial habilities 12,250 51 12 250 51 1220 1
Lease Liabilities 134 2a 134 24 134 24
Total 43%,203.67 49,982.85 - - 49,982 .85
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments 1,399 90 699 95 699 95
31 March 2022
Total Carrying
Particulars Amount Total falr value Level § Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans 39,295 25 40,414 74 40,414 74
Investments at amortised cost 9510 16 11,827 03 11,827 03
Other inanoial assets
Total 48,805 71 51,341 17 - 52,241 77
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 59,080 10 59 080 10 59,080 10
Trade Payables 31811 318 13 iR 13
Other imang al | ahilities 953146 9r31a6 9,531 46
Lease Liabibities 142 319 142 39 147 19
Total 69,072 08 6%,072.08 69,072.08
Ofi-balance sheet items
Loan commitments B71 1 43
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Ldclweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial e
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements [Contipued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

57  Investinents

As at 31 Mareh 2023

At fair value

Lo~ )
o y'a (‘)
\fh Enen AC

-

At cost
particulars At Amortised cost Designated at fair Subtotal a[si;::li:‘:l:sﬂ::d Total {7}
{1) Through OCI{Z} |Through PAL (3] |value through 5=(2+¢303) ! {14546}
Profit or loss {4) foint veatures}
16}
b} Debl securities -
i) Equuly instruments [ [+] oo 0.19
iin} Subsidiaries
aj Equity B
b) Debt secunties -
c) Preference shares
fiv} Other Edelweiss group compares
a} Equaty
b) Debt secunties - 2 g
c] Preference shares -
[v] Preference shares -
{w1} Secunty Receipt 2,245 61 6 52 3,1 19 2,992.19
{vii) Others - Investments In Partnershp frm Growp 316 3.16
{win} Pasy Thiough Certificates S0 37 502.37
ix} Others - Investments in Funds - 3,794 62 - 3,194 62 179462
x} Others - Umils of Tech Funds - g - -
i) Others - Units of India Credst Investrment Fund 11 B
il Others - Uity ol Indi Credit Investment Fund )
[®) mvestiment in CCDS 1,000.10 - . - . 6,182.80 1.182.90
TOTAL - Gross [A) 1,502.47 - £,040.39 746.52 6,786.91 6,185.96 14,475.34
1] Investments outude India . 2 - E : -
) Investment in Indu 1,502.47 - 6,040,939 746,52 5,786.91 6,185.96 14,475.34
Total (B} 1,502.47 - 6,040.39 746.52 5,786.91 6,185.96 14,475.34
Le3s: Allowance for Impalrmant (C) - - 85481 - 86.81 -0.04 B %12
Total Net [A-C| 1,502.47 - 595358 145.52 6,704:10 6,186.00 _14.33857
As at 31 March 2022
At fair value At tost
(subsidiaries,
At Amortlsed cost Designated at fais Subtotal Total {7)=
Partlculars assoclates, and
m Through 0TI {7} | Through PEL (3] |value through §a|Teded) {1+548)
jolnt venturas)
Piotil or loss {4) )
() Debt wecuritioy 1126 26 1,126.26
1) Lauity insbouments 10 106 - 1.00
(08} Subsidearies 0
a) Equity 1 34% §4 1.889.14
) Debt secoetes .
) Predornnee sharey £ % 819.75
iv] OVha Ledelweciss grous comprames
A tquity B i £10.35
U Debt securties -
o) Pratference shares -
{1} Prefermie shares -
jwi} Secunty Recopt D K009 1,00199
{uu) Others  Dwwestmints s Padnership fion Groap L 165
{vii] Share wateants E
I} Others  Invvestments us Pl A.25001 A5 m 4,159.01
{x) nvestment in CODS L Ok Loon 2.5 0% 157008
TOTAL - Gross [A) 2,10 M L6y AR IR 17,502.22
) werstnents outade Indis 3
[} westnert i IRV [ALTR RN 20k O Ja1m 12,502.22
Totsl (0 2120670 202 AL TR FA12 12,502 22
Less: Allowsnce for Impalrment {C} Yt Kt d) Hu Bl Ltk iam L1557
Talal Net {A-C) 2140 0 1RIG L THM 2 4 14 HA 16,386.65




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

58 Income tax

The components of income tax expense recogrised in profit or loss for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are

Parttculars 2022-23 2021-22
Current tax 84,58 105.53
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 5.55 {11.74)
Deferred tax relating to onigination and reversal of temporary differences 205.02 (8.00)

Deferred tax relating to unused tax losses and unysed tax credits aclud ng write-downs) {net)

Total tax expense 295.14 45.79
Total current tax 90,12 93.79
Total deferred tax 205,02 (8.00)

Reconciliation of the total tax expense

The tax expense shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tas expense that weald apply of alt profits had been chasged at India
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the Lax expense and the accounting prafit multipked by India™s domestic tax rate for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are follows

Particulars 022-23 2021-22
Profit / {Loss) before tax {2,177.32} {1,089.76}
Tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Income tax expense calculated based on above tax rate {839.32) {361.09}
Adjustment in respect of income tax of prior years 5.55 {12.01)
Others -share of partnership firm / Dividend Income g 0.00
Tax break deduction u/s 36{1Hwn) of Income tax act, 1961 - 2.33
Deduction ufs 350 of Income 1ax act, 1961 {0.08) {0.08)
Effect of non:deductible expenses {20.28) 21.08
Penalties 0.00 0.00
Standard Deduction and Property Tax on HP lncome - 0.0
Effect of utdisation of tax losses or deierred 1ax assets on losses carier recognised now

considered not recoverable 0.00
write down / reversal of wrile down of deferred Lax assets on unised tax credits and unused

tax losses {net) 215.46 {65.671
Ellect of non recognition of deferved tax asset on current perind lossos Gi}7 %A 497 62
Others i - 26.27 L

Tan expense recognised in profit or foss 295.14 85.79




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the f {Continued)
{Currency Indlan rupees In millions}

%9 A Components of deferred 1an
The fallowing 1able shows deferred taw re  rded nth Balance stheet dnd changes recorded Inthein - me tax expense

Movement fod the  sod 10122
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ning deferred  Recognived n In other
selfillab iy} profiterlows  comprohens
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financ 2l statemeats {Continued]
{Cursency  dian rupees in mikany

60 Credit Quality

The table below thows the credit quabily and the Mmasanum capotere 1o Cedit sk hased on the Company inteinal gradig and ysor end stage chisshcation The amounts presentssyd

ate gross of mpawment aliowan es. Oetails of the compray nternal grading systeim e sxplaned in Bote 52 and polies on whether £

or rollective bavs aee st out in Note 52

Gross carrylng amoun o loan assels aliocaled to Stage 1, Slage 2, Stage 3

Loans at amortised cost

gwances e Calelated on an indwdual

Particulary IH-Mar-23 11-Mar 22
Stage | Stage It Stage Nl Total Stage Stage )l Sage Total
Periorming
Hehgrane 17.293 08 27,293.04 I3 5692 61
Stamdard 43 ¢ Y4204 3,420.74 A 1025 13
Subitand rade . -
Non-petforiming
Impaead 3,208 11 1,208.11 2 inaf 1536 a7
Tatal 27,293.04 341074 3,208.11 331,921.89 15,692.61 02513 2,536.07 4125381
Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and ulowances for eapecied credit loss
Particulars Mon-credi impinred Credit unpired Total
RIENC] ] Staem Stage N1
Gross carrylng  Allowance for Gross camying  Allowance for  Gross carryiny Allowance tor  Gross cartying  Allowance tor
amount [{4] amopunt ECL amount FCL amount ECL
Baianrc at 1 Apnl 202} 3,955 47 [T L 06 ¥ T TR FTEI RS TOT 23
Transter
fr o CMomb Ll W - nooy w1 il 251 (%1 NERVH
Transt * FCL{St ) (LA 150 Wi 14 [ LI H
Trant 4 UL 1 I g {5
4 i 4oy {500 W ]
Metre nos smemt ol 60w o Bramouamsher
af b (L TRy it “inl [T
N new a1 Linthes lendingfle 1apinents)
I il wow ol nzirem s ' “ I LA RN a
A L enofl [URL] (UL b (R L1} [RER S "
1 martveracon Ha Gosonm ae * o E [RI0TN [
Marh 202 1 11,2144 6584 3,420 1) LEZ R 3 R.191.86 L7654 j i.R48.01 1,995 32
Pantivulan Nan-rredit inpaioed Credl impasred Toutal
Stage | Stage I Stage (1l
Grots carrying  Allowanes far Grows canying  Aowance for  Grass canying Allowance far Geoss canylog  Allowance (e
amaount [1x§ amount ECt amount ECL amaunt (14}
Waluwe n | Ay H00L EEEY YT ) Adir 6y v Fl
el e 2} 134 r) RIRL] 1o 1 1 ,
Ay 1107 B () 1A 1 A V
] st 1 [T 144} {9l 44 ' AK
ot AR g T e Jder
roat o
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financlal statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

61

Changes In liabilities arising from financing activities

Below table shows changes in in liabilities arising from financing actwities during the reparting period

Far the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash Finance costs during
Particulars 1-Apr-22 flows the year Others 31-Mar-23
Debt securities 25,019.09 {2,908.81 1,534.71 206.58 23,851.57
Borrowings other than debt securities 31,288.63 {13,164.65 1,397.65 1,141.93 20,663 56
Subordinated kabilinas 2,772.38 (1,980.01 192.60 - 984 97
Total labilities from financing activities 59,080.10 {18,053.47) 3,124.96 1,348.51 45,500.10
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Cash Finance costs during
Particulars 1-Aps-21 flows the year Others 31-Mar-22
Debt securitics 45,686 46 {24.112.65) 3,584.77 {139 49} 2501909
Borrowings other than debt securities 28,127 71 (2,327 34) 5.550.46 {62.20) 31,288 63
[Subordinated liabilities 2.556.43 T86.65 1530 27T 3T
Total liabilittes from financing activities 76,370.60 (26,439.99} 9,321.88 {172,39) 59,080.10




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Nates to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

62

63

Revenue from contract with customers
Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers and its reconcihation to amounts reported in statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Nature Fees and commission
Ihcame
Service transferred at a point un time Agri Shared Serwices {ASC), Real Estate Advisory Praclice (REAPF) and 205 87
Others
Service transferred over time Enterprise cost sharing 776 46
Total revenue from contract with customers 982 03

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Nature Fees and commission
income
Service transferred at a point in time Agri Shared Services (ASC), Real Estate Advisory Practice {REAR) and
Others 594.02
Service translerred over me Enterpree cost sharing 692 37
Total revenue from contract with customers 1,286.39

“Nuwama Clearing Services Limited {"NC5L") (Farmerly known as Edelweaiss Custodial Services Limited). an erstwhile associate of the Edelweiss Financial
Services Company Limited (EFSL) challenged an order, by an investigating agency. marking hen on its clearing account, before the 47th Additional Chief
Metropolitan Magistrate Court, Mumbar {"ACMM”) Since the investigation against Anugrah Stock and Broking Pyt Lid. {"trading member”), for which
NCSL was a cleanng member, is stll under process, the sid Court contended that it had ne objection 1o setting aside Lhe lien order, upon NCSL providing
an undertaking to keep sufficient assets unencumbered. The above case which 1s pending for hearing before ACMM, has now been transferred to the City
Civil & Sessions Court under Maharashtra Protection ol Interest of Depositors {In Financial Establishments) Act, 1999 [MPID). Dunng the vear ended
March 2023, hearing has happened with Securities Agpellate Tribunal with respect Lo NSCL's application made to SAT for challenging NCL's perverse
order against NCSL, and the sard hearing has been conclutded and for which no arder or further directions from SAT have yet been received. The matter s
sub judice and has been hsted for further hearing and there is no further update on this matter dunng the year

On behall of NCSL, the group has provded the undertaking 1o keep sufficient unencumbered assets amounting to Bs. 420.00 million belonging to Lhe
Company and the said lien has been set aside. During the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company had transferred, such perpetual bond that was given
as undertaking to investigating agencics, amounting Lo Rs.},95¢ milhon 1o Edel Finance Company Limited 1n accordance with undertaking submivied 1o
investigating agency that total given undertaking will remain with Edelweiss Group. The Comghiny bas been represented by NCSL that at has acted in
accordance with the agreement entered with the trading member and i accordange with applicable lows and regulations Accordingly, these 1y no
adjustment required in the financial results for the year ended March 31, 2023

g\\‘“”rm‘-’ dz,}
Yr &




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
{Currncy : Indian rupees in milllons)

64 Composition of the Group

Pl f
Note Tlaceo

e Incorporation

Propartion of ownership
interest as at March 31, 2023

Propartion of ownership
interest as at March 31, 2022

Subsidiaries:

Nido Home Finance Limited [Formerly known as

Indi 5

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) e e 37123%

2 Edelweiss Investrnent Adviser Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
= " 3

Comtrade Commt‘)dmes Ser\nces. l.l.ﬂ'\llf.‘d {Formerly india NONTC G 100 00%

known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)
4 Allium Finance Private Lirmited a  India 73.76% 70.97%

Associate

ities Lirnited | F ly k Edel
Ecap equities Limited { Formerly known as Edel India 37.59% 37.50%

Land Lirnited }

Notes:

a. ‘Wwith effect from 12 Oclober 2022, Group increased its stake i Allium Finance Prvato Limited, one of its subssdary from 70.97% 10 73.76% and

same has be consolidated accordinlgy
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Note t the
[

ntlal statements [Continued)
rupees in mitions)

65 Additional information as requried under

ot

AL 2013 P [:

$r Name of the Entity Net Assets Le. Total As minus Shate in Profit or Loss Shate in Cther Compreheniive  Shace In Total Lompre hensive
No Total Liabilrtes in ome Witame
Fou FY 2012-23 AL % ol Amount A% ot Amount Az % ol Amaunt As % of Amount
consoldated i Mikion} conobidated e M Fom) womalidated {in Million) tomoldated tin MIlkan}
neL Jasers prolit o bass other total
compiehensive comprehansive
Ingoue Iniome
Farent
Eelwensy Rurdl & Coeporate Seiwcey Lumited 62 85% 4,315 56 I731% {1968 56) 258 )34 {113 BRI
Subsidiaries
tadlyn
1 Hdo Home tenarce Limvted (foemetly known by Edelwens o 4a% 1944 68 [ REY 1061 ? 3k e 6 4%% 1621
Houung Finance Limited}
?  Edehueiss Investment Aduces 1urited BIGIR (4198 M) A6 3% {1,143 M0} 16 07% w1 60K (1,143 8
3 bdehwerss Comtrade hinuted O 10 roa 0135 [ 64} 18 85 100 0 L9% {1 B4)
4 Alwm Finance Privaty Limibed 1901% 1108 34 1455 361 0004 145 in h
Non-ConlroMing 56 67% 31900 14 A 8221 100 00% 106 179 L0
Adjustments arling out of consoldation 9 MK 16,17 59) i5 9 34 1 33 K] 1573 147 a1
Astociale (Invastment 21 ger the equity method) - Indian
Ldel Land Limiled FEI (57 40} F] 157 40) 7 08 TN FET) 0 1H
100% 6,301,083 100%  (2,519.86) 100% 106 100% (2,528 81}
Sr. Name of the Entlty Net Adiets Le Total Adpets mingd Share in Profly oF Loty $hare in Caher Comprehentive  Share in Total Compreheniive
HNo Total Liatulties lncome income
FFY 20172 A% Amount As % ol Amauny A % of Amgust Ay % of Arnoynt
comolidated [In Misiioa) consolidated  {InMiion)  consolidated (i Million]  comolidated  {in Mifon)
neL ddets profin o loss other total
comprehensve comprahanyve
lcpme income
el
3 | Corpot o foic 3 oim 1 % 029258 5 J%  (HM H) 11 T 0 1y [T
Subsidistirs
Indlan
I Nado Home Fingoste Liendted (Furmierly knpwn as Fdelwrsy [T E LI h: [RRTTY mray 0wt v # 8t 118 10
Muus g buanue Limied]
I Ede weat lnvestment Adwaer Limitsd wld % 1vusn 5l W (RN o [y SN {RAZ A7)
+ o Ede ey {omtigde Lamied % 183 0 % 410k (2] om 0 2E% {411
4 AL brance Peovake Linded H [ F A EERTES W 4a on ooy [U91: 3 2N EL
Non-Controlin kolerdsts k- [X: ST 10 Hu% LbL BH EUP] ] o0 [LORER L6+
Adjusiments arising oul of comolidation FFIBRY 1o BrLaY) 14 MR 26N o o NO0VE (Lanui
Astorhata Bnvetment 45 pad the squity mathod) - Indlan
Lalel Ly Ll A1) [ELCTRY;] Ay 11t 42) oo PN {1 wan)
Tot [ 497014 HON (1.536.17) 100% (1804} 100% {1,554.43)

WMEB AL
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scrvices Limited

Notes to the il ial {Continued)
{Currency - indlan rupees In milllons)

66 Discloure of interest in other company

Proportion of ownership |
q Place of Predlt (loss) allocated o non
5 Ne Mame of Subsidiary Wncorporatian held by non controlling controlling inte rost
Interast
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly kngwn as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limied)h Iincia ad Hi 7191 61.3%
Alhum Finance Prvale Limsted Invced 6 % L0 29 7341

Summaried hnancal information n respect of each of the Growp subsiduries that bave inaténal aan coatralling interesty 1 set ot betow The suminaned financial wnfarmation
below represents amounts before intra group ehimimatons

ied Financial inf

Nido Meme Finance Limbted (Formerly
Sr No |Paribculars known as Edelwelss Houslng Finance
Limited)
31:Mar-23 31-Mar-12
1 |Non-Current Assets 17304 56 2582729
2 |Current Assets 10,445 34 13.73% 30
3} |Nan current Liabitees 2192157 19,060 47
4 JCurrent Liabilmies 7,953 66 12,729 80
5 |Equity sttributable 10 owners of the company q.387 8% 4274 86
& |Non contralling Interest 3.556 B3 1481 M
Sr No [Particulars 31-Mar.23 31-Mar-22

1 |Revenue from operatians 4,165 92 5.120 16
2 |Total Income 1123 5,139 1¢
3 |Tatal Expense A, 17008 4917 28
4 |Proii/{toss) belore tan JOROJ 201 B2
5 [tax exponie Al ad 3 /%)
& |rratiiLoss) alter tan L6 6 11807
7 |Oiher Compiohonuve ncomne 236 ooe
B |Total Comprebaitive intorm: 164 97 IR 16
9 |Ta1. Peahinftass) atiobutable to owners o Parest a1 04 140 0

10 JTotal Peafinf{Loss) stiebutable to Mon contéidling intereu JEDE 618t

11 fCash Bow {used)/generated hom opargling 4 by 1511 63) M6
12 [Cash Now {yred)/goarcitin ram Investing setvstirs 49 181 ran
11 [€Cash Aow fused)/gonceated feom hunancing ativities {9.281 40
14 [Nt Cash Inflow/{outilow} (096 18} Y26 M)

(TIERY




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in miliions)

67 Details of Ratio:

Particular March 31, 2023) March 31, 2022
Debt-equity Ratio (Refer note 1) 6.83 6.73
Interest Service Coverage Ratio (Refer note 2) 0.64 0.84
Earnings Per Share - Basic (Face Value of Rs10/- each) (35.00) (23.43)
Earnings Per Share - Dilutive(Face Value of Rs10/- each) (35.00) (23.43)
Total Debts/ Total Assets (Refer note 3} 0.71 0.76
Notes:

1 [Debt-equity Ratio = Total Borrowing (Non Current Borrowing + Current Borrowings ) / Net worth

2 [Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Profits before interest and tax / Interest expenses

3 |Total debt to Total assets = Total Borrowing {Non Current Borrowing + Current Borrowings } / Total assets
Current ratic, Long Term Debts to Working capital, Bad Debts to Arcounts Receivables Ratio, Current Liability
4 |Ratio, Debtars turnover, Inventory turnover and Operating Margin (%), Net Profit Margin (%) are not
applicable owing to the business model of the company.

T
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Motes ta the linandial statemants {Conttued]
(Currency  Indian rupees in millians|
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Tithe deardti of ot held i ¢ of the Company

There vsg propeilyl 1han prop where Twoug ri Frinee arsd the logye ageeements ate duby eumated ndausor 0 the Irssesl, hold by the whete (i deeds are aol heltbin fame of
Group

Ottalls of Benami Froperty held

he Geoup does nol have 40y Benams properly. whede sy pris cedsng bas oo i ted or gondung A th g any e Ferdrg ang Hengrn groperiy

WAl Datavhier
The Gitasd has Bt been decared a3 willul delaulter by sny bank 3 Lngr s b5 Lsson oF olhe! lendeor

f (harges of fcharges ol Companies {RGLH
The Gremp 0004 AB1 have Jeiy Tharges o 1absTALEse whith 1 yel 16 he ¢ Agrises el metis A0C hepond the stattony peiog

b Steuch oM €
Tranvachaidi mith companies sk off under Logian 218 of the dompanies B2t M0LESE Seqlgn Shi) od Campamey Aot 145

For March 31 2023
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Anahs Qrgdnatipn Prolevisysad =45 L1 Vemlot
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Form AOC-I

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounst/) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Name of the Subsidiary Company

Nido Home Finance Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss

Edelweiss Investment Adviser

Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade

Allium Finance Private Limited

Housing Finance Limited) Limited Limited)
Reporting currency INR INR INR INR
Exchange rate
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 693.50 6,755.50 290.00 68.26
Reserves of the Subsidiary 7,251.18 (10,954.45), (282.96) 1,240.08|
Total Assets of the Subsidiary 37,862.20) 6,759.15 34.62 1,311.34]
Total Liabilities of the Subsidiary 29,917.52] 10,958.11 27.58 3.00
Investments 2,804.02| - - 1,071.46
Total Turnover 4,446.85 1,636.45] 0.61] 58.37|
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 208.07 (1,167.13) (4.62) 62.84]
Provision for taxation 47.44 6.08 0.03 26.13]
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 160.63| (1,173.21) (4.64) 36.71
Proposed dividend - - - -
% of shareholding 55.23% 100% 100% 73.76%
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja Chirag Shah

Executive Director & CFO
DIN No.:05147051

May 22, 2023

Director
DIN No.:07297081

Company Secretary




Form AOC-I

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounst/) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

Part "B": Associates

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

ECap Equities Limited (Formerly
SrNo [Name of the Associate known as Edel Land Limited)

Latest Audited Balance sheet date 31-Mar-23

[

N

Share of Associate held by the Company
on the year end

Number of shares 22,818,000

Amount of Investment in Associates ( *
in millions) 6,600

Extend of Holding % 37.59%

w

Reason why the associate is not
consolidated No Control

o

Networth attributable to Shareholding
as per latest audited Balance Sheet ( *in
millions) 3,879.27

Profit / (Loss) for the year

5

i. Considered in Consolidation (57.40)

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation
(including exceptional items) (95.32)

Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja
Executive Director & CFO Director
DIN No.:05147051 DIN No.:07297081

Chirag Shah
Company Secretary

May 22, 2023



NOTICE

NOTICE OF THE 17TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 17TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
MEMBERS OF EDELWEISS RURAL & CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON
SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AT 2:00 P.M. AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY AT 4-A, 4™ FLOOR, EMGEEN CHAMBERS, CST ROAD, KALINA, SANTACRUZ
(EAST), MUMBAI - 400 098, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.  To consider and adopt:-

a. the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Board and the Auditors thereon;
and

b.  the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Santosh Dadheech (DIN: 00196204), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offered himself for re-appointment.

3. Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and 142 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and all other applicable laws and pursuant to the recommendations of the
Audit Committee and that of the Board of Directors, M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002391C/N500069) be and are hereby appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a term of 5 years, to hold office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 22" AGM of
the Company to be held in the calendar year 2028 and that the Board of Directors be and
is hereby authorised to fix the remuneration from time to time as may be recommended
by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Alteration of the Articles of Association

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:-

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157

Regd. Off.: 2" Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 Tel. No.: +91 40 40316900

Corporate Office: 4-A, 4™ Floor, Emgeen Chambers, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400098 Tel. No.: +91 22 4079 5199
Email: cs@edelweissfin.com Website: https://ercsl.edelweissfin.com




“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5 and 14 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force)
and the Securities and Board Exchange of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021, the approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded for
alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company by insertion of the following sub-
clause (3) after the existing sub-clause (2) of Article 49:-

‘(3) The Board shall appoint the person nominated by the Debenture
Trustee(s) as per the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 as a Director on the Board of the
Company. Such appointment shall be subject to the provisions of the
Debenture Trust Deed(s), the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Regulations and
all other applicable laws.’

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’ which
term shall be deemed to include any Committee which the Board may have constituted or
hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this
Resolution) be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or expedient in the
interest of the Company and with power on behalf of the Company to settle any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to secure any
further consent or approval of the Members of the Company.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Chirag Shah
Company Secretary
(Membership No. A32465)

Mumbai, September 28, 2023

Registered Office:

2"d Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 034

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE
MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
MEETING.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any
other person or shareholder.

2. The Annual General Meeting is convened at a shorter notice after obtaining the
necessary consent of the members as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

3.  An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act), in respect of the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM / Meeting) is annexed hereto.

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

5. Pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India, information in respect of the Directors seeking
re-appointment at the AGM is given in the Annexure to the Notice.

6. A Route Map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the venue of
the Meeting is annexed herewith.

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE DATED SEPTEMBER 28, 2023

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (‘the Act’)

ITEM NO. 3:-

M/s. S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No.301003E/E300005) were appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the Members at the 12t" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on July
24, 2018 to hold office until the conclusion of the 17t AGM of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2023.
Accordingly, the term of M/s. S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants would expire at the conclusion of the
17t AGM in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

The Audit Committee having considered various parameters have recommended the appointment of
M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:002391C/N500069) as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company. The Board of Directors of the Company based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee have
recommended the appointment of M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, to hold office for the first term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of the 17" AGM till
the conclusion of the 22" AGM to be held in the calendar year 2028.

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the Company has received the written
consent from M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP and a certificate confirming that they satisfy the criteria as provided under
the Act and their appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the
Rules framed thereunder. As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer
Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No.3 of the Notice for the approval of the
Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, directly or
indirectly, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice.

ITEM NO. 4:-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), has amended the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (the NCS Regulations) requiring all the companies whose Non-convertible
Debentures (NCDs) are listed on the stock exchanges to amend their Articles of Association (Articles) such that
the Debenture Trustees shall have the right to appoint a Nominee Director on its Board in the event of default (as
defined in the NCS Regulations).

The Company has been raising the funds by issue of NCDs in accordance with the provisions of the NCS
Regulations. The NCDs are listed at BSE Limited. Therefore, it would be necessary for the Company to alter the
Articles in the manner provided in the Resolution as Item No. 4 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice.

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, directly or
indirectly, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this item of business.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Chirag Shah
Company Secretary
(Membership No. A32465)

Mumbai, September 28, 2023

Registered Office:

2"d Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 034

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
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Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings (SS-2):-

Particulars Mr. Santosh Dadheech
Date of Birth January 25, 1965
Age 58 years
Date of first appointment January 23, 2019
Experience in functional area Mr. Dadheech's past experience includes stint at National Bulk

Handling Corporation Limited, where he acted as the Director of
Business Development tasked with managing the supply chain,
warehousing, collateral, and the overall bottom-line of the
Company. He climbed the ranks from Senior Vice President to
Director at Stewart & Mackertich Wealth Management Company,
where he was responsible for the retail business, operations,
finance, accounts, and derivatives as well as treasury desks. This
was preceded by similar experience in IT InvesTrust Limited and
Suresh Rathi & Company.

Qualification Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from Jodhpur University

Terms and Conditions of Appointment/ Appointed as a Non-executive Director, liable to retire by
Re-appointment rotation

Remuneration to be paid Mr. Dadheech is holding office / place of profit and is paid
remuneration as approved by the Shareholders.

Remuneration last drawn Refer Corporate Governance Report forming a part of the Annual
Report

No. of Board meetings attended during| 6

the year

Directorship in other Companies Nil

(Public Limited Companies)

Name of listed entities from which the |
person has resigned in the past three

years

Membership/ Chairmanship of Nil
Committees of other public limited
companies

(Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship/ Investors Grievance

Committee only)

Relationship with other Directors inter-se None
and with Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

No. of shares held in the Company Nil

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Chirag Shah
Company Secretary
(Membership No. A32465)

Mumbai, September 28, 2023

Registered Office:

2"d Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 034

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Corporate Identity No. (CIN): U45201TG2006PLC078157
Registered office: 2" Floor, MB Towers, Plot No.5,

Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad — 500034

Email: cs@edelweissfin.com

Folio No./ Depository A/c No.

I/We, being the member (s) of

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014/

.......................................... Shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name 2. Name B. Name

Address IAddress Address

E-mail Id E-mail Id E-mail Id

Signature Signature Signature
........................................... ,or failing him [ OF faIlING KM o

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 17% Annual General Meeting of
the Company, to be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.at the Corporate Office of the Company at 4-A,
4t Floor, Emgeen Chambers, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400 098 and at any adjournment thereof in

respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

b) the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2023, together with the Report of the Auditors

thereon.

Sr. Resolution For Against
No.
To consider and adopt:-
a) the audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
together with the Report of the Board and the
Auditors thereon; and
1.

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
Regd. Off.: 2" Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 Tel. No.: +91 40 40316900
Corporate Office: 4-A, 4™ Floor, Emgeen Chambers, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400098 Tel. No.: +91 22 4079 5199
Email: cs@edelweissfin.com Website: https://ercsl.edelweissfin.com




To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Santosh Dadheech
(DIN:00196204), who retires by rotation and, being eligible,
offered himself for re-appointment.

3. |Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

4.  |Alteration of the Articles of Association

Signed this...... day of......... 2023.

Affix

Revenue

Stamp

Signature of shareholder
Signature of Proxy
holder(s)

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157

Regd. Off.: 2" Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 Tel. No.: +91 40 40316900

Corporate Office: 4-A, 4" Floor, Emgeen Chambers, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400098 Tel. No.: +91 22 4079 5199
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Corporate Identity No. (CIN) — U45201TG2006PLC078157

Registered office: 2" Floor, M.B. Towers, Plot No.5,
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
17t Annual General Meeting

Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.

Folio No. /Client ID No./DP
Id No.

No. of shares

I/we certify that |/we am/are a Registered Member/Authorised Representative of Registered Member
under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 /Proxy for Registered Member of Edelweiss Rural &
Corporate Services Limited.

I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 17t Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. at the Corporate Office of the Company at 4-A, 4t
Floor, Emgeen Chambers, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) Mumbai — 400 098 and at any
adjournment thereof.

*Member's/ Authorised

Representative’s/ Proxy's full name in block letters

Member's/Authorised
Representative/ Proxy's
Signature

Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the venue of the meeting.

* Please strike off whichever is not applicable

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157

Regd. Off.: 2" Floor, MB Towers, Plot No. 5, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 Tel. No.: +91 40 40316900
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Route Map of the venue of the 17t Annual General Meeting of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services
Limited

AGM Venue: 4-A, 4t Floor, Emgeen Chambers, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400 098

Prominent Landmark: University of Mumbai, Kalina

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN: U45201TG2006PLC078157
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